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1                     PROCEEDINGS

2           JUDGE JONES:  Good morning.  I call

3 hearing docket no. 13-0192.  This is entitled in

4 part Ameren Illinois Company d/b/a Ameren Illinois,

5 proposed general increase in gas rates.

6        As before we will take the respective

7 appearances orally for the record.  If you have

8 entered your appearance in a prior hearing in this

9 matter, you need not restate all your contact

10 information unless you simply prefer to do that or

11 it has changed in some way.

12        We will start with appearances on behalf of

13 Ameren Illinois Company and more specifically from

14 those who are present in the Springfield hearing

15 room.

16           MR. STURTEVANT:  Good morning, your

17 Honor.  Appearing on behalf of Ameren Illinois

18 Company from the Law Firm Whitt Sturtevant, Albert

19 Sturtevant, Chris Kennedy and Anne Zehr.  Our

20 information was previously provided.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Appearances

22 this morning?

23           MR. TOMC:  Appearing on behalf of Ameren

24 Illinois Company, Matthew R. Tomc, Edward C.
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1 Fitzhenry and Eric Dearmont.  We have previously

2 provided our information.  Thank you.

3           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

4           MR. OLIVERO:  Appearing on behalf of the

5 staff witnesses of the Illinois Commerce

6 Commission, Christine Ericson, John Sagone and Jim

7 Olivero.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

9           MR. O'BRIEN:  Appearing on behalf of the

10 People of the State of Illinois, Timothy O'Brien,

11 Sameer Doshi, S-A-M-E-E-R D-O-S-H-I, Office of the

12 Illinois Attorney General.  Address and contact

13 information previously provided.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

15           MR. ROBERTSON:  On behalf of the

16 Illinois Industrial Energy Consumers, Ryan

17 Robertson.

18           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are there any

19 other appearances from those who are in

20 Springfield?

21        Turning to the Chicago office, are there

22 appearances to be entered this morning?

23           MS. SODERNA:  On behalf of the Citizens

24 Utility Board, Julie Soderna and Christie Hicks.
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Others?

2           MR. FOX:  Gerard T. Fox on behalf of the

3 Illinois Competitive Energy Association and the

4 Retail Energy Supply Association.

5           MR. TOWNSEND:  On behalf of the Retail

6 Gas Suppliers, the Law Firm of Quarles & Brady by

7 Christopher J. Townsend, Christopher N. Skey and

8 Adam T. Margolin.

9           MR. MOORE:  Also on behalf of the Retail

10 Gas Suppliers, Stephen Moore of the Law Firm of

11 Rowland & Moore, LLP.  Information has previously

12 been given.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are there any

14 other appearances to be entered?

15        Let the record show there are not.

16        Looking first at the chart with the witness

17 order and cross-examination estimates, have there

18 been any changes made to that?

19           MR. STURTEVANT:  I don't believe so,

20 your Honor.  I think for once this one is accurate.

21           MR. O'BRIEN:  Judge, I will just note

22 that the company did agree to waive Mr. Brosch who

23 was scheduled to testify tomorrow morning.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  It appears
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1 that we have five witnesses on the schedule today.

2        Is the order of those witnesses still,

3 still the same, at least as of now?

4           MR. STURTEVANT:  Yes, your Honor.

5           JUDGE JONES:  I realize the schedule can

6 be kind of a fluid thing from day to day or hour to

7 hour, so updates, I think, are always helpful.

8        Before we get to the witnesses, I want to

9 turn at least briefly to the pending, pending

10 motion.  I think, as the parties are aware, the

11 most recent filing which was made timely yesterday

12 afternoon by the Citizens Utility Board was a reply

13 filing to responses made by the parties who oppose

14 the CUB motion to strike.

15        I have a couple questions I guess for

16 clarification at this point, and my question goes

17 to whether the witnesses in question here including

18 the CUB witness are being called to testify in this

19 proceeding as expert witnesses.

20        So if Counsel for those respective parties

21 would speak to that, I think that would be useful.

22        Before I forget again, before you speak if

23 you are in Chicago please identify yourself so our

24 court reporter will be able to attribute your
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1 questions or comments to you.

2           MR. TOWNSEND:  Your Honor, your Honor,

3 Chris Townsend on behalf of RGS.  Mr. Crist is

4 being called to testify as an expert witness in

5 this case.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.  Others?

7           MR. FOX:  Yes, your Honor, Gerard Fox.

8 Mr. Kevin Wright is being called as an expert

9 witness in the case.

10           MS. SODERNA:  Julie Soderna on behalf of

11 CUB.  Mr. Martin Cohen is being called as an expert

12 witness.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

14        The other question that I have this morning

15 goes more or less to the status of certain CUB

16 responses to data requests.  Now, those responses

17 received quite a bit of attention in both responses

18 to the CUB motion as well as in the, at least one

19 of the witness testimonies.  It is in the motion

20 subject to the motion to strike.

21        All right.  Now, I am looking at page 9 of

22 the RGS response where it states, in part, it

23 should be noted that CUB's responses to data

24 requests which RGS intends to have admitted into
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1 the evidentiary record contain essentially all of

2 the same information.

3        With respect to the statement that RGS

4 intends to have certain DR responses admitted into

5 the evidentiary record, what is the status of that

6 intent?

7           MR. TOWNSEND:  Your Honor, Chris

8 Townsend on behalf of RGS.  We still do intend to

9 introduce those data request responses, seek to

10 introduce those in the evidentiary record.

11           MS. SODERNA:  Julie Soderna from CUB.

12 We have had some exchanges from Counsel on the

13 issue.  CUB objects to the data request responses

14 regarding workshop participation.

15           JUDGE JONES:  One moment.  A couple

16 things occur to me at this point.  Excuse me.

17 Those responses have been frequently cited in, or

18 attached to those responses there is an indication

19 statement that RTS or RGS intends to seek their

20 admission into the evidentiary record.

21        Given that, it seems to me that the

22 question of the status of those DR's in terms of

23 their admissibility or admission into the

24 evidentiary record is probably a question that
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1 should be addressed along -- in some manner along

2 with the motion related filings before a ruling is

3 issued on the motion given the connection that has

4 been made by various parties.  Some of the parties

5 in that regard do not see a benefit issuing a

6 ruling on the motion before the second motion,

7 separate motion to admit certain DR responses has

8 been taken up.

9        I think there needs to be some process,

10 some scheduling put into place to get any as of yet

11 unmade motion on the DR responses addressed so as

12 to be able to take, take all of the above up at the

13 same time.

14        But one thing that I am not inclined to do

15 is devote the morning to cut a motion and the DR

16 responses, so let me ask it this way.

17        Mr. Townsend, do you intend to make a

18 motion or file a motion to seek admission of those,

19 of those responses or certain of those responses?

20           MR. TOWNSEND:  Your Honor, at your

21 preference.  Certainly we could file a written

22 motion if you prefer or at this time we could just

23 at this time make an oral motion for the admission

24 of those data request responses.
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Well, here is the thing.

2 We are not going to devote the morning to this

3 issue.  We have a lot of witnesses to take up

4 today.  That's why I wanted to get clarification of

5 the status of that motion up front.  We have a lot

6 of DR's to go into the record by agreement of the

7 parties.  We see a lot of DR's in the record,

8 heading into the record in this docket.  But what

9 I'm hearing this morning is this set of DR's is not

10 going to be one that will go into the record in

11 some manner other than over objection of another

12 party.  So that's going to require more attention

13 than the other DR's that we have seen, at least so

14 far in this proceeding.

15        So I'm open-minded as to how the process

16 works in terms of getting the motion into play and

17 any responses to it, replies to that so that we can

18 get the positions into the record on that and then

19 take both motions up at the same time so to speak

20 as a CUB motion to strike and the RGS motion to

21 admit certain DR responses.  But I am not going to

22 spend a lot of, a lot of additional time on that

23 this morning arguing the new motion and then, and

24 then making a ruling on both motions at this
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1 morning's hearing.

2        So if you -- but with that said, then, I

3 think there is some flexibility as to how those,

4 how that process will work and when.

5           MR. TOWNSEND:  Your Honor, this is Chris

6 Townsend on behalf of RGS.

7        I do believe that the issues have been

8 fully briefed with regards to, that surround those

9 data requests.  I don't think there is any, any

10 need for additional legal argument with regards to

11 that.  So however you want to proceed with this,

12 again, I think that the most streamlined way

13 perhaps would be just to have oral motion, and then

14 we can, we can argue that motion if there is

15 separate objections to that, to that motion.

16        But we do have an agreement with CUB to

17 admit a number of data requests, just not all of

18 those that are cited here.

19           MS. SODERNA:  Yeah, I would agree with

20 what Mr. Townsend has said.  I think that CUB's

21 response to any written motion would be in

22 substance the same as the legal arguments contained

23 in the motion to strike and the reply.  I don't

24 believe there would be any additional legal
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1 argument.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Could you identify

3 yourself, please?

4           MS. SODERNA:  Sorry, what was that?

5           JUDGE JONES:  Could you identify

6 yourself?

7           MS. SODERNA:  Julie Soderna with CUB.

8 Sorry.

9           JUDGE JONES:  I'm not convinced as I sit

10 here that those arguments are going to be identical

11 and focus specifically on the, on the same thing.

12 So I'm not inclined to just accept the existing

13 record that is with respect to the CUB motion as

14 one that will apply equally to the motion to admit

15 the DR responses.

16        When it comes to admitting DR responses,

17 different, different factors come into play.  We

18 have already had assertions here as we do in other

19 cases that experts have leeway in what they, what

20 they cite in formulating their opinions.  But there

21 is also a lot of case law out there that says while

22 that is certainly true, that experts have latitude

23 in relying on non-record documents, for example,

24 that that doesn't mean that somehow those same
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1 documents, the ones that can be relied upon by the

2 expert are automatically destined for the

3 evidentiary record.

4        There is lots of Commission rulings in

5 cases that have had to be issued on that very point

6 by me, and there is a lot of case law on it.  So

7 I'm not comfortable just relying on the record that

8 that's been made in the responses, though I have no

9 problem with those responses.  I think they were

10 turned around very quickly and are largely well

11 explained, but I'm not inclined to just live with

12 whatever is in there in terms of having to make a

13 ruling on a contested motion to admit certain DR

14 responses that are also the topic of much of the

15 argument with respect to the CUB motion and

16 responses to that.

17        I think we do have some options.  I didn't

18 really spend as much time on this this morning as I

19 really wanted to.  I understand the desire of the

20 counsel for the three, three parties who are

21 involved in this motion to wrap this up, but we

22 have a lot of other witnesses, a lot of other

23 parties who are on the schedule today, and although

24 the original motion was timely filed, I believe the
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1 responses were timely filed also up to and through

2 last night.  I do not believe we saw the so-called

3 intent to have admitted into evidentiary record

4 these particular or at least some of these data

5 responses until, until a response filing was made

6 by RGS on Friday, I believe.

7        To provide parties a brief opportunity to

8 discuss scheduling with regard to this we will

9 hereby go off the record.

10                  (Discussion off the record.)

11           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on the

12 record.  Let the record show there was an

13 off-the-record discussion for the purposes

14 indicated.  Some scheduling scenarios were

15 discussed with respect to a looming motion to be

16 made by, by RGS as previewed in the RGS response

17 that was filed on Friday.  I believe that there is

18 some agreement among the affected parties with

19 respect to some scheduling to, to put into place to

20 address that.

21        Mr. Townsend, do you want to indicate what

22 you believe to be such understanding, if there is

23 one?

24           MR. TOWNSEND:  Thank you, your Honor.
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1 Chris Townsend on behalf of RGS.  What we have

2 agreed upon is that RGS will make a motion to admit

3 certain data requests into the record by close of

4 business today, or we will otherwise notify the

5 parties and your Honor our intention not to seek to

6 admit certain data requests, or if we are able to

7 reach an agreement with CUB by close of business

8 today we will let your Honor know that as well.

9        But in any event by close of business today

10 we currently intend to file a motion to admit

11 certain data requests.  CUB then will file a

12 response by close of business tomorrow, and RGS

13 will file a reply if it believes it is necessary by

14 ten a.m. on Thursday.  If we don't believe it is

15 necessary, we will notify the parties and your

16 Honor of that as well.

17           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you, Mr.

18 Townsend.

19        Turning to counsel for the Citizens Utility

20 Board and also to Mr. Fox on behalf of his clients

21 here, do you have any clarification with respect to

22 that scheduling?

23           MS. SODERNA:  This is Julie Soderna on

24 behalf of CUB.  No, Mr. Townsend succinctly
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1 summarized the schedule on the motion to admit

2 certain data requests responses.

3           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  And are you

4 agreeable to that schedule?  At least you have no

5 objection to it, Ms. Soderna?

6           MS. SODERNA:  No objection with that

7 schedule.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Fox, do you have

9 anything to say about that?

10           MR. FOX:  Yes, I agree with the schedule

11 that was set forth by Mr. Townsend and have no

12 objection to it.

13           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

14           MR. TOWNSEND:  Your Honor, this is Chris

15 Townsend on behalf of RGS.

16        Do we want to schedule a time for us to

17 appear before your Honor, then, subsequent to that

18 to answer any questions or to receive a ruling on

19 the motions?

20           JUDGE JONES:  I don't think we can

21 really commit to a specific time at this point

22 seeing as we have a witness cross-examination

23 schedule that is in effect on Thursday, and we will

24 receive that reply at ten a.m.  So whether there is
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1 some way to fit that in later Thursday I do not

2 know, and the best that I can do on that is to, is

3 to try to be as flexible as possible to accommodate

4 the individuals who are involved with this motion.

5        That's why I put it on first thing this

6 morning as stated on the record yesterday and

7 followed by an email so that all involved would

8 know so that you would have some notice, some

9 opportunity to plan ahead for this morning without

10 having to sit through hearings all day waiting for

11 something to happen on the motion if you did not

12 have other reasons to be there.

13        We will try to do this, make the same

14 accommodations here to the extent that I can, but

15 what I probably cannot commit to this morning is

16 setting aside a specific time on Thursday to, to

17 take that up.

18           MR. TOWNSEND:  Chris Townsend on behalf

19 of RGS.  Thank you, your Honor.  I would also note

20 that it appears we may not have been added to some

21 of the service lists.  So we would ask that

22 parties, when they serve responses, I think --

23           JUDGE JONES:  That sounds like a

24 reasonable request.  So yeah, please check the
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1 current service list and make sure that

2 Mr. Townsend is on the service list and his firm

3 are copied on whatever is sent around.  I will do

4 the same.

5        All right.  Just to finish up, I'm trying

6 to think if there is any better way to kind of keep

7 you posted in terms of what we will be, what we

8 will be doing, and if it is helpful to you -- I am

9 not sure it will be -- we can sort of put this on

10 the agenda for first thing Thursday to try and get

11 a better fix on what the future holds there

12 procedurally speaking on the CUB motion and the RGS

13 motion.  So we would visit the, visit the status of

14 that on Thursday morning more or less at the outset

15 if you, if you want to.  If that will help you out,

16 we can try to do that.

17        We will not be arguing it at that time, but

18 we will try to set a status and figure out what the

19 best procedural course after that so you can have

20 some input in that and also know what is going on

21 without having to do a lot of guessing.

22        So would that be beneficial to you?

23           MR. TOWNSEND:  On behalf of all of us

24 here in Chicago, this is Chris Townsend for RGS.
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1 Yes, I think that that would be helpful for us to

2 be able to try to address that first thing

3 Thursday.  Thank you, your Honor.

4           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  So we will

5 kind of take that up.  I don't know what first

6 thing will mean time wise as of today, but we will

7 know, we will know tomorrow afternoon what first

8 thing Thursday means as far as start time, and we

9 will make sure you get emailed with respect to the

10 start time Thursday morning so you can know if it

11 is 10:00 or 9:30 or some time.

12        In case I neglected to do so at this point

13 let the record show that the scheduling that was

14 read into the record by Mr. Townsend at least

15 concurred in by the others is hereby put into

16 place.

17        Is there anything else to take up with

18 respect to the motion to the related question

19 before we move onto other business?

20        Let the record show there is not.

21        Thank you to counsel for your participation

22 this morning and for coming up with some scheduling

23 very quickly on short notice.  We will proceed

24 accordingly.  Thank you all.



210

1           MS. SODERNA:  Thank you, your Honor.

2           MR. FOX:  Thank you.

3           MR. TOWNSEND:  Thank you.

4           JUDGE JONES:  With respect, then, to the

5 examination of the witnesses, it looks like there

6 is a staff witness who is going to lead off.

7 Is there anything else that parties believe should

8 be taken up this morning before we, before we do

9 that?

10           MS. SODERNA:  This is Julie Soderna from

11 CUB.  I was hoping to request an audio hook-up for

12 tomorrow.  I don't know how easy or challenging

13 that is to put together, but I thought I would make

14 the request.

15           JUDGE JONES:  From somewhere other than

16 the Chicago office, other than, other than --

17           MS. SODERNA:  Web cast?  Is it possible

18 to do it via web cast?  Not the video, just the

19 audio, but, you know, on the Internet just to

20 listen, not to participate.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Let me -- I will have to

22 give some thought to that one if I want to do that.

23 I probably won't make a determination on that as we

24 sit here right now.
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1           MS. SODERNA:  Thank you very much for

2 considering a request.

3           JUDGE JONES:  Is there anything else

4 before we start the cross-examination of the

5 witnesses?

6        Let the record show there is not.

7        So I think we're ready to proceed with the

8 witnesses.  First up today is a staff witness; is

9 that right?

10           MR. OLIVERO:  This is Jim Olivero on

11 behalf of staff.  Yes, your Honor.  We would call

12 Bonnie Pearce to the stand.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  If anyone is having

14 any trouble hearing the witness or anybody, let us

15 know, interrupt us.  We will try to figure out what

16 to do about that.  Sometimes it is just positioning

17 of the microphone, assuming it is on.  And we can

18 help with that.  Stand and be sworn, please.

19                    BONITA PEARCE,

20 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

21 as follows:

22                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

23 QUESTIONS BY MR. OLIVERO:

24        Q.  Good morning, Ms. Pearce.
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1        A.  Good morning.

2        Q.  Would you please state your full name

3 and spell your last name for the record?

4        A.  Bonita A. Pearce, P-E-A-R-C-E.

5        Q.  And Ms. Pearce, by whom are you

6 employed?

7        A.  The Illinois Commerce Commission.

8        Q.  And what is your position with the

9 Illinois Commerce Commission?

10        A.  I'm an accountant in the accounting

11 department of the financial --

12           MS. SODERNA:  We are having a bit of

13 difficulty hearing you in Chicago.

14           MR. OLIVERO:  The witness?

15        A.  My mic was not on.  I apologize.  I'm

16 an accountant in the accounting department of the

17 Financial Analysis Division of the Illinois

18 Commerce Commission.

19        Q.  And Ms. Pearce, have you prepared

20 written testimony for purposes of this proceeding?

21        A.  Yes, I have.

22        Q.  You have before you a document that has

23 been marked for identification as ICC Staff Exhibit

24 4.0R entitled Revised Direct Testimony of Bonita A.
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1 Pearce which consists of a cover page, table of

2 contents and 15 pages of narrative testimony?

3        A.  Yes, I do.

4        Q.  And is that a true and correct copy of

5 the revised direct testimony that you have prepared

6 in this proceeding?

7        A.  Yes.

8        Q.  That was filed on the Commission's

9 E-docket system on June 27th, 2013; is that

10 correct?

11        A.  Yes.

12        Q.  You also have a document that you had

13 filed on e-Docket identified as ICC Staff Exhibit

14 4.0 entitled Direct Testimony of Bonita A. Pearce

15 which had attached to it ICC Staff Schedules 4.01

16 through 4.05 for rate zones 1 through 3, for which

17 I believe 4.03 and 4.04 were filed in both

18 confidential and public versions, and finally you

19 had attachments A and B to that schedule and

20 attachments to the original ICC Staff Exhibit 4.0?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  And are those true and correct copies

23 of the schedules and attachments that you attached

24 to ICC Staff Exhibit 4.0 that you have prepared for
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1 this proceeding?

2        A.  Yes.

3        Q.  And those were filed on the

4 Commission's e-Docket system on June 1, 2013,

5 correct?

6        A.  Yes.

7        Q.  Do you also have before you a document

8 which has been marked for identification as ICC

9 Staff Exhibit 9.0 entitled Supplemental Direct

10 Testimony of Bonita A. Pearce which consists of a

11 cover page, table of contents, five pages of

12 narrative testimony and Schedules 9.01 through

13 9.02?

14        A.  Yes.

15        Q.  Are those true and correct copies of

16 the supplemental direct testimony and schedules

17 that you have prepared for this proceeding?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  And those were filed on the

20 Commission's e-Docket system July 5th of 2013,

21 correct?

22        A.  Yes.

23        Q.  Then finally do you have before you a

24 document which has been marked for identification
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1 as ICC Staff Exhibit 13.0 entitled Rebuttal

2 Testimony of Bonita A. Pearce which consists of a

3 cover page, table of contents, 17 pages of

4 narrative testimony, Schedules 13.01, 13.02, 13.04

5 and 13.06 for rate zones 1 through 3 as well as

6 attachments A through D as in dog?

7        A.  Yes, that's correct.

8        Q.  Are these true and correct copies of

9 the rebuttal testimony schedules and attachments

10 that you have prepared in this proceeding?

11        A.  Yes.

12        Q.  And these were filed on the

13 Commission's e-Docket system on August 7th of 2013,

14 correct?

15        A.  Yes.

16        Q.  Ms. Pearce, as you sit here today do

17 you have any corrections to make to your prepared

18 revised, direct, supplemental direct or rebuttal

19 testimony?

20        A.  No.

21        Q.  And is the information contained in ICC

22 Staff Exhibits 4.0R, 9.0 and 13 as well as the

23 accompanying schedules and attachments to both ICC

24 Staff Exhibits 4.0, 9 and 13 true and correct to
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1 the best of your knowledge?

2        A.  Yes.

3        Q.  And if you were asked the same

4 questions today would the answers in your prepared

5 testimony be the same?

6        A.  Yes.

7           MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, at this time I

8 would move for admission into the evidentiary

9 record Ms. Pearce's prepared revised direct

10 testimony marked as ICC Staff Exhibit 4.0R

11 including the schedules and attachments that were

12 filed with the original direct testimony.

13        We would ask Ms. Pearce's supplemental

14 direct testimony marked as ICC Staff Exhibit 9.0

15 including schedules and Ms. Pearce's prepared

16 rebuttal testimony marked as ICC Staff Exhibit 13.0

17 including schedules and attachments be entered into

18 the record, and then we would tender Ms. Pearce for

19 cross-examination.

20           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

21 Any objection or clarifications with regard to the

22 evidentiary items sponsored by Ms. Pearce and

23 subject to Mr. Olivero's motion?

24        Let the record show there are not.



217

1        Let the record further show that those

2 items of testimony documentation sponsored by Ms.

3 Pearce and as identified on the record a few

4 minutes ago are hereby admitted into evidentiary

5 record as filed on e-Docket on the dates identified

6 by Mr. Olivero.  I believe he covered all of the

7 evidentiary items, numbers and dates in his

8 examination and motion, so I will not repeat any of

9 those things.

10                  (ICC Staff Exhibits 4.0R, 9.0

11                  and 13.0 admitted.)

12           JUDGE JONES:  It appears that Ameren

13 Illinois Company has some questions for Ms. Pearce;

14 is that correct?

15           MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, your Honor.

16                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY MR. KENNEDY:

18        Q.  Good morning, Ms. Pearce.

19        A.  Good morning.

20        Q.  My name is Christopher Kennedy.  I'm

21 here on behalf of Ameren Illinois.  I have a couple

22 of questions this morning about your position in

23 this case.  Specifically I would like to talk to

24 you today about three areas; your advertising
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1 adjustment, your credit card adjustment and your

2 sponsorship adjustment which I realize is part of

3 your advertising adjustment.

4        A.  Yes.

5        Q.  First I'd like to talk to you about

6 your adjustment to gas advertising, not the

7 sponsorship piece, but the calculation of the

8 baseline for advertising for the forecasted test

9 year.

10        Do you agree that as a general matter that

11 gas delivery service can be compromised by

12 excavators, contractors and homeowners

13 inadvertently digging into pipelines?

14        A.  Yes.

15        Q.  It is important, would you agree, to

16 educate consumers, contractors and excavators

17 about, you know, the location of pipelines and

18 importance of using safe practices when digging

19 around pipelines; would you agree with that?

20        A.  Yes.

21        Q.  Would you also agree that it is

22 important to educate first responders and municipal

23 leaders about how to react to emergency situations

24 such as gas leaks or ruptures in gas pipelines?
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1        A.  Yes.

2        Q.  Are you familiar with the 811 number

3 that's available for consumers and other people to

4 call?

5        A.  JULIE?

6        Q.  The JULIE number, correct.

7        A.  Yes.

8           MR. KENNEDY:  May I approach the

9 witness, your Honor?

10           JUDGE JONES:  Yes.

11           MR. KENNEDY:  Let the record show that I

12 have handed Ms. Pearce what is a resolution adopted

13 by the ICC on the 24th of March, 2010.  The docket

14 number is 10-0223.  The caption for the resolution

15 is Supports 811 - the Call Before You Dig to Locate

16 Utility Lines.

17        Q.  Have you had an opportunity to look at

18 that resolution, Ms. Pearce?

19        A.  Yes.

20        Q.  I only want to ask you one question

21 about it.  In the third paragraph the following

22 statement appears in the third whereas clause;

23 through education about safe digging practices,

24 excavators and homeowners can save time and money
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1 and keep our nation safe and connected by making a

2 call to 811 in advance on any digging project;

3 waiting the required time for utility lines to be

4 marked, respecting marked lines by maintaining

5 visual definition throughout the course of the

6 excavation; and digging with care around the marked

7 utility lines.

8        Do you see that paragraph?

9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  Do you have -- do you take any or do

11 you have any disagreement with that general

12 statement in the resolution?

13        A.  No.

14           MR. KENNEDY:  May I approach the witness

15 again, your Honor?

16           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

17           MR. OLIVERO:  Is this one exhibit or is

18 this --

19           MR. KENNEDY:  May we go off the record

20 for a second?

21           JUDGE JONES:  Off the record.

22                  (Discussion off the record.)

23           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.

24        Q.  Let the record show that I have handed
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1 Ms. Pearce three news releases from the Illinois

2 Commerce Commission web site.  All three press

3 releases are entitled ICC Reminds Homeowners:  Call

4 Before You Dig.  The dates are March 23, 2001,

5 April 4th, 2012, and April 5th, 2013, and all three

6 of these documents are generally available on the

7 Commission's web site in the news archive section.

8        Ms. Pearce, do you recognize this sort of

9 annual announcement that the Commission has made in

10 recent years?

11        A.  Yes.

12        Q.  For each, for each of these three I

13 just wanted to direct you to some of the numbers

14 that are listed in here.  In the first one, March

15 23, 2011 press release, the fourth paragraph down

16 it states that, "ICC staff recently reported that

17 103 warnings and 55 citations were issued in 2010,

18 penalties for not having a valid locate request or

19 for not digging carefully around marked underground

20 utility facilities.  The ICC levied $46,000 in

21 penalties as part of its JULIE enforcement

22 efforts."  Did you see that paragraph?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  In the second one a similar -- dated
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1 April 4th, 2012, a similar paragraph appears.

2 Sixth paragraph down it states, "ICC staff reported

3 121 warnings and 54 citations were issued in 2011

4 resulting in $55,606 in penalties for not having a

5 valid locate request or for not digging carefully

6 around marked underground utility facilities.  The

7 ICC levied penalties as part of its JULIE

8 enforcement efforts."  Do you see that paragraph as

9 well?

10        A.  Yes.

11        Q.  And then finally again, a similar

12 paragraph appears in the April 5th, 2013, news

13 release.  The fifth paragraph down says, "In 2012

14 ICC staff issued 123 warnings, 88 citations

15 resulting in almost $92,000 in penalties for

16 violations such as not having a valid locate

17 request or for not digging carefully around marked

18 underground utility facilities.  The ICC also

19 levies penalties to utility owners who fail to mark

20 underground facilities correctly and on time

21 (within 48 hours)."

22        Do you see that paragraph as well?

23        My question about the data is just would

24 you agree with me that it continues to be an issue
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1 where there are contractors, excavators and

2 consumers on an annual basis digging into

3 underground pipelines?

4        Do you agree that the data in the press

5 releases in the ICC sites supports this idea that

6 there is a continual problem with that happening?

7           MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, for purposes

8 of, I guess, what the witness can answer, I mean we

9 have just gone over what was in each of those

10 paragraphs there.  If it is simply a question to

11 confirm that it appears to be what -- and I don't

12 know who releases these press releases on behalf of

13 the ICC as stating for each of the respective

14 years.  I don't have a problem with her responding

15 to that, but I guess anything above and beyond

16 that, whether she knows from her own personal

17 knowledge of that pattern, I guess I would have an

18 objection that she is not really the person to

19 testify to that.

20           MR. KENNEDY:  Do you mind if I respond?

21           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

22           Mr. KENNEDY:  I would -- you know, I see

23 Mr. Olivero's point.  I would say Ms. Pearce, I

24 believe, is an expert witness in this case.  She
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1 has testified on what she believes to be an amount

2 of reasonable gas advertising spending for the

3 company to make in 2014, and what I am asking her

4 to do here is just look at the data that the ICC

5 itself has presented and see if she has an opinion

6 or agrees with my opinion that the data suggests

7 that there is a continual annual problem with

8 excavator, consumer and contractor digging.

9           JUDGE JONES:  Anything further?

10           MR. OLIVERO:  No, your Honor.

11           JUDGE JONES:  Miss Reporter, can you

12 read the question?

13                  (The reporter read the question.)

14           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Pearce, do you

15 understand the question?  Do you understand the

16 question that was asked of you?

17        A.  Yes.

18           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  All right.  I

19 will allow the question with the understanding that

20 Ms. Pearce will be asked to answer it if she has an

21 opinion to express.

22        So it appears to that extent the objection

23 is overruled, so if you have an opinion on that,

24 please answer the question.  If you do not have an
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1 opinion on it, you can so state.

2        A.  My opinion would be that the

3 information that was read is what is contained in

4 this news release which is entitled a reminder to

5 Homeowners:  Call Before You Dig.  I think it is --

6 it indicates that there are still accidents that

7 occur.  It gives some statistics and reminds people

8 to call the number.

9           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

10           MR. KENNEDY:  Your Honor, as a

11 formality, the company would like to request

12 administrative notice of the three press releases

13 on the ICC web site without actually moving them

14 into the record just so you take notice of them.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Well, if you are looking

16 to get administrative notice taken of them, which

17 would get them into the evidentiary record which is

18 presumably your intent, then the end result is the

19 same.  So I'm not quite sure what distinction would

20 be there in terms of the end result.

21           MR. KENNEDY:  Well, I can make a formal

22 motion to admit these as AIC Cross Exhibit 1, if

23 that's easier.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Either way you go with the
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1 motion we would see if there is any response or

2 objection to whatever it is that you are

3 requesting.

4        Mr. Olivero, do you have any --

5 Mr. Olivero, do you have any, any response to the

6 request to admit these items into the evidentiary

7 record other than by administrative notice at this

8 time?

9        Back up a minute.  As I understand it,

10 counsel for Ameren Illinois is seeking to get these

11 admitted into the evidentiary record.  Excuse me,

12 I'm sorry.  If I am speaking you are going to have

13 to let me finish before --

14           MR. OLIVERO:  I'm sorry.

15           JUDGE JONES:  As I understand, counsel

16 for Ameren Illinois is seeking to have these

17 admitted into the evidentiary record like any other

18 exhibit and is not using administrative notice

19 mechanism, at least yet, in requesting that these

20 items be admitted.

21        So do you have any objection or other

22 response to the admission of those exhibits?

23        Now that I have completed what I had to

24 say, if you want to consult with somebody briefly,
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1 that's okay.

2           MR. OLIVERO:  Thank you.  One moment,

3 your Honor.

4        Now, it is my understanding they would just

5 mark this exhibit, move to admit it.  We would have

6 no objection to that.

7           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Does any other

8 party have any response to that?

9        Okay.  It appears, then, that there is no

10 objection to the admission of those three items

11 being admitted into evidence in this case.

12        How do you want those marked?

13           MR. KENNEDY:  We will mark them AIC

14 Cross Exhibit 1, and the three items, again, for

15 the record were ICC press releases, three of them,

16 entitled, each entitled ICC Reminds Homeowners:

17 Call Before You Dig.  The dates are March 23rd,

18 2011, April 4th, 2012, April 5th, 2013, and, again,

19 they're generally available on the ICC web site in

20 the news article section.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Do you have any objection

22 to the identification of those as AIC Cross

23 Exhibit?

24           MR. OLIVERO:  No, your Honor, and that
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1 was No. 1, correct?

2           MR. KENNEDY:  Correct, Jim.

3           JUDGE JONES:  Any other responses?

4        Let the record show there is not.  AIC

5 Cross Number 1 is hereby admitted into the

6 evidentiary record.

7                  (AIC Cross Exhibit 1

8                  admitted.)

9           JUDGE JONES:  Do you want to file that

10 on e-Docket, then?  That way it will be accessible

11 to everybody in that fashion.

12           MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, the company filed

13 this and any other cross exhibits on e-Docket.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.

15        Q.  (By Mr. Kennedy) Thank you, Ms. Pearce.

16 That's all that I would like to talk to you about

17 advertising today.  I would like to talk to you

18 next about your adjustment for corporate credit

19 card charges.

20        In making your adjustment in this case, did

21 you review the rebuttal -- well, let me, the

22 supplemental rebuttal testimony of Ms. Boyles, the

23 Ameren witness, specifically her exhibit, Exhibit

24 28.1?



229

1        A.  Yes.

2           MR. KENNEDY:  May I approach the

3 witness, your Honor?

4           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

5           MR. KENNEDY:  Let the record reflect

6 that just for the ease of discussing this exhibit

7 with the witness, I handed her a four-page copy of

8 what was previously marked and admitted into

9 evidence as Ameren Exhibit 28.1, pages 1 through 4.

10 I represent that this is the rebuttal exhibit to

11 Ms. Boyles' supplemental rebuttal testimony.

12        Q.  Do you recognize this document or did

13 you review this document, Ms. Pearce?

14        A.  Yes.

15        Q.  I would like to ask you just about a

16 couple of charges that you are disputing.  There is

17 a number of charges that are listed on both your

18 exhibit and Ms. Boyles' exhibit that are for

19 wireless cell phones or Blackberries.  Do you agree

20 with that?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  Are wireless cell phones potentially

23 useful in a work environment?

24           MR. OLIVERO:  I'm going to object, your
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1 Honor.  I guess I'm not really clear in terms of

2 the question in a general work environment.  Unless

3 Mr. Kennedy is going to tie it in as to how it

4 applies to the advertising cost, I don't think

5 that's really relevant.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

7           MR. KENNEDY:  With respect to the credit

8 card charges, I think the company's position is

9 these are legitimate business expenses.  I was just

10 asking her if she found that, you know, having a

11 cell phone or work issued cell phone would be

12 useful in the work environment.  I can -- if I can

13 make the question more specific, that would be --

14           JUDGE JONES:  I mean, is this the first

15 of a string of questions in this line where you

16 will be tying that question into I think is what

17 Mr. Olivero is asking, or is it just a stand-alone

18 question?

19           MR. KENNEDY:  No, it is the first of a

20 series of questions.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Go ahead.  You may

22 proceed.  So there is a question pending.  Do you

23 need that read back?

24        A.  Yes, please.
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1              (The reporter read the question.)

2        A.  I would say it depends on the work

3 environment and how cell phones are being used.

4            JUDGE JONES:  May I interrupt briefly?

5 Since the question -- since an objection was made

6 subject to tying up later the line of questioning,

7 Mr. Olivero, I will give you an opportunity to

8 renew his objection if he believes it is not tied

9 up eventually in that line of questioning.

10        Q.  Ms. Pearce, I would direct you to

11 Ameren Exhibit 28.1 in front of you.

12        Looking at lines number 15, 17, and 16,

13 just three examples, do you see those are charges

14 for what appear to be cell phones?

15        A.  Yes.

16        Q.  That's according to the explanation

17 that's provided in the exhibit, correct?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  And you see that in the expense type

20 for those lines, 15, 16 and 17, the company has

21 indicated that it believes those are other utility

22 equipment?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  As you sit here today do you have any
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1 reason to believe that these phones are not used

2 for work-related purposes by the employees who

3 purchase them?

4        A.  I really can't say how they were used.

5 All that I can say is it appears that they were

6 purchased, and I don't know how they were used.

7        Q.  Are you taking issue with the company's

8 description of them as other utility equipment?

9        A.  No.

10        Q.  So you, as you sit here, you don't know

11 if they were used; you can't say definitively they

12 were not used for work-related purposes based on

13 what you reviewed?

14        A.  I can't say they were not used for

15 work-related purposes nor can I say that they were.

16        Q.  Do you have any opinions as you sit

17 here today whether a utility such as AIC would --

18 let me strike that.

19        Do you have any opinions as you sit here

20 today whether a utility worker's effectiveness

21 would be impacted in any way if he was required to

22 only use a direct land line for purposes of doing

23 his day-to-day operations?

24        Are you making any opinions about that in
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1 your testimony?

2        A.  I don't believe I am.  I think that was

3 a very kind of vague question.

4        Q.  Let me ask a more specific question.

5 Assuming a lineman was given a work phone that was

6 a cell phone and he was, he was able to use that

7 phone while he was on the job or during a storm --

8           JUDGE JONES:  Hypothetical?

9           MR. KENNEDY:  Yes, hypothetical.

10        Q.  -- while he was on the job or during,

11 during the storm response activity.

12        Do you think that that lineman, do you have

13 any opinions about whether that lineman would be

14 less effective in his job if he was not allowed to

15 have a work-issued cell phone?

16           MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, I'm going to

17 object.  That question calls for speculation on Ms.

18 Pearce's part.  I understand --

19           MR. KENNEDY:  Go ahead.

20           MR. OLIVERO:  I'm sorry.

21           MR. KENNEDY:  Go ahead.

22           MR. OLIVERO:  As I understand it, it is

23 a hypothetical situation that he is presenting with

24 regard to this particular or a certain type of
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1 worker that may be in the field and that, but, but

2 I don't necessarily know Ms. Pearce has the ability

3 to opine whether that would make him more or less

4 effective.

5           MR. KENNEDY:  If I may respond briefly.

6 I think what I'm attempting to do -- maybe the

7 question was phrased badly -- but my question is

8 attempting to assess whether Ms. Pearce applied any

9 criteria to making this allowance for cell phones

10 that the company has indicated were purchased for

11 work-related purposes.

12        So I am just exploring whether as an expert

13 she has any opinions about the usefulness of cell

14 phones in the utility industry by, I will admit, a

15 hypothetical lineman worker.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Is Ms. Pearce testifying

17 as an expert in this proceeding?

18           MR. OLIVERO:  She is regarding the

19 topics that she identified in her testimony.

20           JUDGE JONES:  I think it is, I believe

21 it is an appropriate hypothetical question for the

22 expert, so the objection is overruled.You may

23 answer if you have an opinion.

24        A.  Sorry, can you --
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1           MR. KENNEDY:  I can restate the

2 question.

3           JUDGE JONES:  We don't want you to

4 restate the question.

5                  (The reporter read the question.)

6           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please answer

7 if you have an opinion.

8        A.  I don't have an opinion.

9        Q.  I believe earlier on you said it would

10 depend on the use, the business use of the cell

11 phone or had a response similar to that.

12        Let me ask this question.  Would you agree

13 that depending on the situation of the worker, what

14 his job was, what his daily activities were, that

15 having a work-issued cell phone could allow him to

16 be more productive in his job?

17           JUDGE JONES:  Are you still on your

18 hypothetical or have you switched out of that?

19           MR. KENNEDY:  It is a different

20 hypothetical.

21           JUDGE JONES:  But this is a

22 hypothetical?

23           MR. KENNEDY:  It is.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.
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1        A.  Hypothetically it could.

2        Q.  Thank you.  I would like to ask you a

3 couple questions, Ms. Pearce, about just one other

4 or two other categories of charges on this Ameren

5 Exhibit 28.1.  If you could see lines 5, which is

6 purchase of a TV for Champaign storm room?

7        A.  I see it.

8        Q.  Do you see that the company has

9 indicated that that is an expense that was used for

10 storm response or preparation, preparedness?

11        A.  That's the description.

12        Q.  Are you disputing that this particular

13 TV was used for the storm response center?

14        A.  It may have been.

15        Q.  As you sit here today you don't know,

16 don't have any evidence that it was not used for

17 that purpose as the utility indicated?

18        A.  That is correct.

19        Q.  Also for lines 12 and 13, that appear

20 to be charges for DirectTV service?

21        A.  I see that.

22        Q.  Again, similar to the TV Champaign

23 storm room charge, those charges are the types that

24 the company has indicated were used for storm
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1 response and preparedness?

2        A.  Yes.

3        Q.  And you are not disputing that the

4 company used those, that cable service as part of

5 the storm response effort?

6        A.  They may have used it for that purpose.

7        Q.  And similar to the TV for the Champaign

8 storm room, as you sit here you have no evidence to

9 show that those cable charges were not used for

10 work-related storm purpose?

11        A.  No, I have, I have not.

12        Q.  Thank you, Ms. Pearce.

13        Regarding some of the other charges that

14 were not cell phones and TV, I wanted to ask are

15 you familiar with Internal Revenue Service's tax

16 provisions on employee fringe benefits?

17        A.  Somewhat but not --

18        Q.  Did you, in the purposes of making your

19 adjustment, did you consult any IRS regulations for

20 guidance related to employee fringe benefits?

21        A.  No, I did not.

22        Q.  So I can -- is it safe to assume that

23 you did not consider when -- you did not consider

24 when disallowing an expense whether a particular
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1 item was a fringe benefit that the IRS does not

2 consider taxable?

3        A.  No I did not.

4        Q.  So I will use more specific examples.

5 For instance, for achievement or safety awards that

6 were listed on the schedule, you did not --

7        A.  When you say, "on the schedule", you

8 are referring to?

9        Q.  I will find one in particular.  You

10 know, let me strike that last question related to

11 the achievement awards.

12        For instance, if you were to look at the

13 charge on line one which were doughnuts for an OSA

14 meeting -- again, this is line one of Ameren

15 Exhibit 28. 1 -- for storm response and

16 preparedness, do you see that?

17        A.  Yes, I do.

18        Q.  In making your exclusion of that you

19 did not consider whether the IRS considers that a

20 deminimus fringe benefit?

21        A.  No.

22           MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, I just want to

23 object because I guess without having gone into

24 what the IRS regulations Mr. Kennedy was talking
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1 about, if there was a dollar value that was

2 considered deminimus or not, I guess I am not

3 familiar with those regulations, but --

4           JUDGE JONES:  I think that question was

5 answered, so I guess we will see if there is

6 another question asked that would be objectionable.

7 You don't need to --

8           MR. KENNEDY:  Okay.  Okay.

9           JUDGE JONES:  The witness answered the

10 question that was on the table.  So if there are

11 other questions that are viewed as objectionable

12 for similar reasons --

13           MR. OLIVERO:  I will talk faster.

14           JUDGE JONES:  -- we will pick them up.

15        Q.  Thank you, Ms. Pearce.  That's all that

16 I had to ask you about your credit card expense

17 adjustment.

18        The last item that I want to talk to you

19 about was related to your advertising adjustment,

20 the sponsorship portion.

21        So it is clear that you and I are talking

22 about the same thing, it is my understanding that

23 as part of your adjustment to advertising expenses,

24 you calculated based on an average expense based on
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1 historical spending and then deducted from that an

2 amount of sponsorship expense that you considered

3 unrecoverable?

4        A.  Yes.

5        Q.  In doing that you reviewed the ICC

6 decision in docket 12-0293 which was Ameren

7 Illinois' last completed utility rate proceeding?

8        A.  I have reviewed the last, the last

9 order, 12-0293.

10        Q.  I believe your testimony is that you

11 considered that order and criteria from that order

12 when deciding which sponsorship expense items to

13 disallow?

14        A.  Could you cite to a place in testimony?

15        Q.  Your rebuttal testimony, ICC Staff

16 Exhibit 13.0, lines starting with the question 157

17 through 169 it indicates here that you reviewed the

18 standards in that order and then made an adjustment

19 for certain expenses, and on line 169, item 3 was

20 payment for certain sponsorships was one of those

21 expenses?

22        A.  Yes, I see that.

23        Q.  Okay.  So to circle back to my

24 question, it is my understanding based on a review
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1 of your testimony that you reviewed the order in

2 12-0293 and then applied the standards or criteria

3 from that order, what you considered the criteria,

4 to make disallowance for certain sponsorship

5 expenses?

6        A.  I give the basis for my disallowance on

7 line 187, page 9, of my rebuttal testimony.  The

8 basis for my disallowance of each of the

9 sponsorships is provided in Attachment A which are

10 my responses to AIC staff 13.1, 13.10.  Individual

11 sponsorships were disallowed either because they

12 are unnecessary for the provision of utility

13 service and/or do not provide benefits to

14 ratepayers.  I cite some examples.

15        Q.  Correct.  But my question was more like

16 how you came to the conclusion for those standards

17 that you cite in lines 190 to 191.

18        A.  I did consider that.

19        Q.  The order?

20        A.  The order.

21        Q.  12-0293.

22        If I can ask you to turn to, I believe it

23 is your data responses that you attached in

24 Attachment A to your rebuttal testimony?
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1        A.  Attachment A of Exhibit 13?

2        Q.  Correct, Attachment A of Exhibit 13,

3 specifically page 10 of 15.

4           MR. OLIVERO:  Chris, sorry, which number

5 was it?

6           MR. KENNEDY:   It is Attachment A to her

7 ICC Staff Exhibit 13.0, Jim.  It will be a set of

8 data requests that Ms. Pearce gave responses to.

9            MR. OLIVERO:  Yeah, I have that.  I

10 thought you were referencing a certain --

11           MR. KENNEDY:  No, well, the reference is

12 AIC Staff 13.08.

13        Q.  Do you see that question and answer on

14 that page?

15        Ms. Pearce, are we on the same page?

16        A.  I see it.

17           JUDGE JONES:  Do you have a page number?

18           MR. KENNEDY:  It is page 10 of 15.

19        Q.  My question was your answer to part A

20 indicated that you did not review or did not

21 consider the Commission's decision in ICC docket

22 numbers 12-0511 through 512 when judging whether

23 costs in Schedule 9.02 should be disallowed.

24        For the record at the time 9.02 was your
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1 sponsorship exhibit.

2        So that statement means that you didn't

3 review the Commission's opinion in those dockets

4 when considering whether to exclude expenses.

5 Sponsorship expenses, I mean, unless you were wrong

6 when you answered no?

7        A.  I was not wrong, no.  I have read that

8 order, but if you are asking was that the basis for

9 my disallowance --

10        Q.  I think I was asking whether you

11 considered the order when making your decision on

12 what expenses to disallow?

13        A.  No, I don't believe I did.

14        Q.  So it is fair to say that any criteria

15 or Commission conclusions or findings in that order

16 you did not consider when making your adjustment to

17 your sponsorship expenses?

18        A.  As I said in my testimony, I considered

19 the other docket, 12-0293.  I believe in my

20 response I indicate that it implies a legal

21 conclusion has been reached regarding whether that

22 decision is in any manner analogous to this docket

23 providing relevant guidance to the disallowance of

24 costs in the proceeding.



244

1        Q.  I do see the legal objection, and I am

2 just trying to get it clear.  I'm not asking you to

3 make a legal opinion on what the docket meant.  I

4 simply want to know whether you considered the

5 statements in the docket when making your decision

6 to disallow expenses for sponsorships.

7        It is my understanding based on the review

8 of the testimony that you considered the 12-0293

9 docket but did not consider the 12-0511, 0512

10 docket?

11        A.  Yes.

12           MR. KENNEDY:  Thank you, your Honor.  I

13 have no further questions.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Mr. Olivero, do you have

15 any redirect?

16           MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, if you could

17 just give us a few minutes.

18           JUDGE JONES:  How long do you propose?

19           MR. OLIVERO:  Just like five minutes.

20           JUDGE JONES:  Hereby take a five-minute

21 break.

22                 (A break was taken.)

23           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Back on the record.

24 Mr. Olivero, any redirect with Ms. Pearce?
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1           MR. OLIVERO:  Your Honor, at this time

2 we do not have any redirect for Ms. Pearce.

3           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Ms. Pearce.  Is

4 Everson next in line?

5           MR. OLIVERO:  Yes, your Honor.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Please remain standing to

7 be sworn.

8                   MARY H. EVERSON,

9 Having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

10 as follow:

11           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please be

12 seated.

13                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

14 QUESTIONS BY MS. ERICSON:

15        Q.  This is Christine Ericson in Chicago on

16 behalf of Commission staff.  Good morning, Ms.

17 Everson.

18        A.  Good morning.

19        Q.  Good morning.  Please state your full

20 name for the record and spell your last name.

21        A.  Mary H. Everson, E-V-E-R-S-O-N.

22        Q.  Who is your employer and what is your

23 business address?

24        A.  Illinois Commerce Commission.  My
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1 address is 527 East Capitol Avenue, Springfield,

2 Illinois, 62701.

3        Q.  Thank you.  What is your position at

4 the Illinois Commerce Commission?

5        A.  I'm an accountant in the Financial

6 Analysis Division.

7        Q.  Did you prepare written exhibits for

8 submittal in this proceeding?

9        A.  Yes, I did.

10        Q.  Do you have before you a document which

11 has been marked for identification as ICC Staff

12 Exhibit 1.0 which consists of a cover page, table

13 of contents, 12 pages of narrative testimony and

14 attached Schedule 1.01 through 1.09, RZ I through

15 III and Attachment 1 Entitled Direct Testimony of

16 Mary H. Everson, Accounting Department, Financial

17 Analysis Division, Illinois Commerce Commission

18 filed June 11th, 2013?

19        A.  Yes.

20        Q.  And did you prepare that document for

21 presentation in this matter?

22        A.  Yes, I did.

23        Q.  And do you also have before you a

24 document which has been marked for identification
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1 as ICC Staff Exhibit 10.0 Revised which consists of

2 a cover page, table of contents, 20 pages of

3 revised narrative rebuttal testimony and attached

4 Schedule 10.01 through 10.09, RZ I through III

5 Revised and Attachment A Revised and is entitled

6 Revised Rebuttal Testimony of Mary H. Everson,

7 Accounting Department, Financial Analysis Division,

8 Illinois Commerce Commission, filed August 15,

9 2013?

10        A.  Yes.

11        Q.  Did you prepare that document for

12 presentation in this matter?

13        A.  Yes, I did.

14        Q.  Do you have any corrections to make to

15 ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0 or 10.0 Revised?

16        A.  No, I do not.

17        Q.  Is the information contained in ICC

18 Staff Exhibit 1.0 and 10.0 Revised true and correct

19 to the best of your knowledge?

20        A.  Yes.

21        Q.  If I were to ask the same questions as

22 set forth in ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0 and 10.0

23 Revised, would your responses be the same today?

24        A.  Yes, they would.
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1           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, I would move

2 for admission into Evidence ICC Staff Exhibit 1.0

3 and ICC Staff Exhibit 10.0 Revised.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Any objections

5 or clarifications?

6           MR. FITZHENRY:  No objections.

7           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Let the record

8 show that the evidentiary items sponsored by Ms.

9 Everson are hereby entered into the evidentiary

10 record.  All of the exhibit numbers and filing

11 dates were already identified in the examination of

12 Ms. Everson and the motion, so I will not repeat

13 any of that at this time.  In any event, those

14 items are admitted.

15                  (ICC Staff Exhibits 1.0

16                  and 10.0 admitted.)

17           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

18 Ms. Everson is now available for cross-examination.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  It appears

20 that Ameren Illinois has some questions for this

21 witness; is that correct?

22           MR. FITZHENRY:  That is correct, your

23 Honor.

24
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1                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MR. FITZHENRY:

3        Q.  Good morning again, Ms. Everson.  My

4 name is Ed Fitzhenry.  I am here on behalf of

5 Ameren Illinois.

6        A.  Good morning.

7        Q.  The criteria that you relied upon for

8 your charitable contribution adjustment is set

9 forth in your direct testimony of pages 7 through

10 10, lines 115 through 178, correct?

11        A.  Yes, that's correct.

12        Q.  And would you agree there is no

13 Commission rule or prior order that dictates a

14 specific measurement period to be used for

15 averaging or normalizing an operations expense?

16        A.  I agree with that.

17        Q.  You're not aware of any ICC staff

18 policy or documentation that provides guidance or

19 instruction regarding averaging or normalizing

20 adjustments to forecasted costs in a future test

21 year rate case; is that correct?

22        A.  I'm unaware of any.

23        Q.  And you would agree if an annual cost

24 is considered an outlier, it may be appropriate to
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1 omit it from an averaging or normalized amount?

2        A.  If the amount is considered to be an

3 outlier, that might be appropriate.

4        Q.  Now, it is apparent from both your

5 direct and rebuttal testimonies that you offered

6 description of the company's charitable

7 contributions for years 2007 through 2012, correct?

8        A.  I don't understand your question.

9        Q.  Let's refer to page -- sorry, what

10 about my question did you not understand?

11        A.  The word that I described.

12        Q.  Okay.  Let's go to page 8 of your

13 direct testimony.

14        A.  I'm there.

15        Q.  And there the chart that's lines 131

16 through 132, here you show a comparison of the

17 company's actual to budgeted contributions for the

18 years 2007 through 2012, correct?

19        A.  Yes, that is.

20        Q.  Let's refer to page 8 of your rebuttal

21 testimony.  Do you have that?

22        A.  Yes.

23        Q.  In there, lines 125 through 126 you

24 also show the dollar amounts that were budgeted in
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1 each of those years as well as the actual dollars

2 expended in each of those years from 2007 through

3 2012, correct?

4        A.  Yes.

5        Q.  Is it correct to infer from your

6 testimony and these particular tables you thought

7 it was important that the Commission have the

8 information for the years 2007, 2008 and 2009?

9        A.  Yes, since it is representative of the

10 company's history of actual contributions.

11        Q.  And it is correct, however, you did not

12 take into contact the budgeted dollars -- strike

13 that.

14        You did not take into account the actual

15 dollars expended in support for your recommendation

16 as to the company's charitable contribution levels

17 for recovery in this case?

18        A.  I didn't understand that question.

19        Q.  The fact is that you only relied upon

20 the years 2010 through 2012 in the actual dollars

21 expended in support, in part, in support of your

22 recommendation as it relates to charitable

23 contributions?

24        A.  The three years that I used in my
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1 average are the ones that, that I believe are the

2 ones that should be used.

3        Q.  Those years 2010 through 2012?

4        A.  I did review the other years.

5        Q.  Correct.  You did not --

6        A.  They are not included in my

7 calculation.

8        Q.  That was my question.  Thank you.

9        A.  Okay.

10        Q.  I take it from a review of your data

11 response as well as your testimony that you

12 reviewed the Commission's order in docket 11-0282?

13        A.  That's correct.

14        Q.  And you considered the order in docket

15 11-0282 as part of your recommendation in this

16 case; is that correct?

17        A.  It was one of the factors that I

18 considered.

19        Q.  Okay.  Now, is it correct that in

20 docket 11-0282 staff did not use an average

21 methodology for its charitable contribution

22 recommendation?

23        A.  I believe that's true.

24        Q.  Let's refer back to page 7 of your
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1 direct, lines 124 through 127 so that we are clear

2 about this.

3        Sorry, are you there?

4        A.  Yes.

5        Q.  So you took the three-year average of

6 the company's actual contributions by three years.

7        We are talking about 2010 through 2012,

8 correct?

9        A.  Correct.

10        Q.  And then you added a 2% depreciation

11 factor for both 2013 and '14, correct?

12        A.  Correct.

13        Q.  From this information you came up with

14 your recommended charitable contribution amount to

15 be recovered by the company in this case, correct?

16        A.  Correct.

17        Q.  Now, let's talk about the 2% increase.

18        Am I correct in understanding that you used

19 a 2% escalator because the company used it as a

20 general inflation rate for its 2014 test year cost?

21        A.  I considered that the company, that

22 that was a reasonable escalator for those years.

23        Q.  There was no other reason that you

24 relied upon in making use of --
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1           MS. ERICSON:  Objection, asked and

2 answered.

3           MR. FITZHENRY:  I didn't get to ask the

4 question.

5           JUDGE JONES:  Go ahead, finish your

6 question, then we will see if there is an

7 objection.

8        Q.  There was no other reason that you

9 relied upon in relying upon the 2% escalator but

10 for the fact that the company used that as an

11 escalator for its 2014 future test year costs?

12        A.  I did answer that one.  I considered

13 the company's escalator to be reasonable, and I

14 used the 2%.

15        Q.  Now, again, referring back to docket

16 11-0282, is it correct that staff's adjustment, the

17 2% adjustment that the staff recommended in that

18 proceeding was based on its claim that ratepayers

19 were facing difficult economic hardships at that

20 time?

21        A.  I know that was discussed in the order.

22 I don't -- I didn't go into the staff testimony in

23 detail, but I know that subject was discussed in

24 the order.
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1        Q.  Okay.  I have a portion of the

2 Commission's order from 11-0282 if that would help

3 you refresh your memory.

4        A.  No, I have a copy of the order.

5        Q.  Okay.  So to be clear about this,

6 staff's adjustment to charitable contributions in

7 11-0282 was 2% increase over the 2011 amounts based

8 on staff's perception that ratepayers were having a

9 difficult economic time?

10        A.  That may have been an argument they

11 raised.

12        Q.  Do you know --

13        A.  If you want to use that.

14           MR. FITZHENRY:  May I approach the

15 witness?

16           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

17        Q.  Ms. Ericson -- I'm going to show -- Ms.

18 Ericson, I'm showing Ms. Everson a portion from the

19 Commission's order in docket 11-0282, pages 26

20 through 31.

21           MS. ERICSON:  What exactly did you hand

22 to Ms. Everson?

23           MR. FITZHENRY:  I handed her a portion

24 of the Commission's order from docket 11-0282,



256

1 pages 26 through 31.

2           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you.

3        Q.  Give you a chance to look that over.

4        A.  Which part or all of it?

5        Q.  Yeah, all of it.

6        A.  Okay.

7        Q.  Well, why don't you focus on the

8 language where it starts with staff position on

9 page 27 since my questions were about staff

10 position.

11           MS. ERICSON:  I think I'm going to

12 object to this.  This was just handed to her.  I

13 understand there is some references to the order,

14 but this is, certainly this is a new document

15 that's being tendered to Ms. Everson.  I don't

16 think she should be expected to testify to what is

17 in the order per se, just the areas where she has

18 referenced it in her testimony.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

20           MR. FITZHENRY:  Yes.  The witness has

21 already admitted that she responded to the company

22 in data request responses her reliance on Section

23 11-0282, at least her review of Section 11-0282 in

24 the Commission's order on charitable contributions,
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1 and, in fact, in her testimony she also makes

2 reference to the Commission's decision in docket

3 11-0282, and, in fact, I can find the citation

4 where she actually refers to the economic climate

5 at the time that the Commission was deliberating

6 its order, referencing her understanding of why the

7 Commission made the decision it did in docket

8 11-0282.

9           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  You are

10 speaking of a reference in her current testimony?

11           MR. FITZHENRY:  Correct, as well as what

12 she has admitted to on the stand.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Since there is an

14 objection, if you could locate that reference that

15 might help.

16           MR. FITZHENRY:  Sure.  Give me one

17 second, please.

18        You can look at her rebuttal testimony at

19 the bottom of page 11 and top of page 12.  In fact,

20 she quotes a portion from the Commission's order.

21           MS. ERICSON:  If there is a question

22 based on that language, that should be sufficient.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Is there some passage

24 within the portion of that testimony that you are
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1 referring to?

2           MR. FITZHENRY:  Your Honor, I mean, the

3 witness actually characterized her understanding of

4 the Commission's order at lines 192 through 195

5 where she says the Commission discussed in its

6 order docket number 11-0282 its concern with AIC's

7 history reducing its budgeted charitable

8 contributions when it was apparent that it could

9 not fully recover its contributions from

10 ratepayers.

11        In my earlier question I believe, I believe

12 the witness answered in the affirmative whether, in

13 fact, that was the staff's position in that case.

14 She said that it was.  Then my follow-up question,

15 as I recall, was, was there any other rationale,

16 reason offered by the staff in that case beyond the

17 economic hardship that customers were undergoing at

18 that time, and I think that's the question that's

19 pending.

20        A.  You asked me about did staff's position

21 include discussion of the economic hardships, and I

22 don't see where that's in this section.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Everson, if there is

24 an objection pending you will --
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1        A.  Okay.

2           JUDGE JONES:  If there is any future

3 objection, just hold off on your answer until

4 counsel has completed what they have to say about

5 it.

6        I think you have gone ahead, more or less,

7 and answered it, at least I believe that was the

8 intent of your statement there.  So we won't worry

9 about this one, but future questions that are

10 objected to --

11           MR. FITZHENRY:  Your Honor, I think --

12 can we move on, then?  I think we are able to move

13 on.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Yes.  I mean, I think Ms.

15 Everson provided an answer, so --

16           MR. FITZHENRY:  Let me --

17           JUDGE JONES:  -- we will move on.

18           MR. FITZHENRY:  Thank you, your Honor.

19        Q.  Thank you, Ms. Everson.

20        The question is did you review the

21 Commission's order, all four, five pages that I

22 handed you, when you prepared your testimony in

23 this case?

24        A.  I reviewed that order, yes.
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1        Q.  Okay.  Would you agree that in that

2 portion of the Commission's order that it

3 references the staff position that it was taking

4 the position that it did based on economic hardship

5 that customers were incurring at that time?

6        A.  What it says is staff observes that

7 ratepayers face difficult economic hardships today.

8        Q.  It says more than that, doesn't it?

9        A.  Well, if there is --

10        Q.  Sorry.  Let me finish.  It says more

11 than that in terms of what the staff position was

12 in this case, correct?

13        A.  Staff contends that this is especially

14 true when including the greater amount in rates is

15 the very thing that would alleviate the utility's

16 own economic and budgetary conditions that

17 precluded it from donating at the higher levels in

18 2011.

19        The statement before that, yeah, it is

20 somewhat confusing sometimes when I read orders.  I

21 think this was from staff's position.  Staff notes

22 ratepayers have no choice whether to contribute to

23 charities or which organizations will receive that

24 benefit with historically high unemployment,



261

1 stagnant wages, high and rising energy.  It goes

2 on.

3        Q.  Correct.  I guess to close the loop on

4 this, is it fair to say that you did not take into

5 account the current economic climate today in

6 making the adjustment that you are making to

7 charitable contributions, correct?

8        A.  I don't think I agree with that.  I did

9 consider that, at least in the general level,

10 probably the economic times are not as dire as they

11 were but --

12        Q.  Well, please --

13        A.  It doesn't mean I didn't consider it in

14 making my decision.

15        Q.  All right.  Well, show me in your

16 testimony where that consideration is reflected.

17        A.  I don't discuss it.

18        Q.  Okay.  So there is nowhere in your

19 testimony where you talk about current unemployment

20 rates for example?

21        A.  No, I do not.

22        Q.  There is nowhere in your testimony

23 where you talk about the wage levels of Ameren

24 Illinois customers, correct?
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1        A.  No, I don't.

2        Q.  Maybe I have asked this question.  If I

3 have, I apologize.  But is it correct to say that

4 your method for estimating the amount of charitable

5 contributions to be recovered is different than

6 what staff proposed in docket 11-0282?

7        A.  I believe that's correct.

8        Q.  Is it your view that simply because the

9 utility proposed to increase its level of

10 charitable contributions from a prior year that it

11 cannot recover the incremental difference?

12        A.  Read that again, please.

13        Q.  Is it your view that simply because the

14 utility proposed to increase its level of

15 charitable contributions from a prior year, that it

16 cannot recover the incremental difference?

17        A.  In order for it to recover that type of

18 increase, that increase has to be well explained

19 and also taken into consideration the history of

20 the company's plans versus their actions.

21        Q.  Okay.  But the question, I think, is --

22 I will ask it again differently.

23        Simply because there is a change in the

24 level of contributions, charitable contributions,
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1 that in itself is not a reason to disallow that

2 change in the amount?

3        A.  Not in isolation.

4        Q.  Correct.  Now, is it correct that you

5 view charitable contributions to be a discretionary

6 expense?

7        A.  Yes, I think they are.

8        Q.  Okay.  What do you mean by

9 discretionary expense?

10        A.  Well, as evidenced by the company's

11 history, the amounts can fluctuate.  The company

12 can decide to either contribute or not to

13 contribute to various causes.

14        Q.  Okay.  This is just a generic question

15 not specific to Ameren Illinois.  But a utility

16 might, in the course of a year for a variety of

17 reasons, make choices that would affect the level

18 of discretionary expenses, correct?

19        A.  Read it again, please.

20        Q.  In the course of a year a utility could

21 make a choice or number of choices that might

22 affect the level of discretionary expenses?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  And you would agree that a utility's
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1 actual revenues in a given year can impact its

2 actual spending on discretionary expenses, correct?

3        A.  Yes, I agree with that.

4        Q.  For example, an expense that might

5 affect the level of discretionary expenses could be

6 unusual storm expenses in a given year; that might

7 be one example, correct?

8        A.  I think it could be.

9        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

10        Now, let's go back and look at, for

11 example, your rebuttal testimony again in that

12 chart that I referred to earlier on page 8.

13        A.  I'm there.

14        Q.  Again, as I understand the chart, for

15 each of the years indicated you show the budgeted

16 amount, then you show the actual amount expended,

17 and then you show the deviation of the budget and

18 change from the prior year, correct?

19        A.  Yes, that's correct.

20        Q.  You have not attempted to deduce why

21 the company changed the budgeted amount to a

22 different amount, the amount actually expended in

23 each year, did you?

24           MS. ERICSON:  Objection, calls for
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1 speculation.

2           MR. FITZHENRY:  No, it does not.  Well

3 I'm asking her what she did in terms of her

4 testimony.

5           MS. ERICSON:  I'm sorry, I thought --

6 would you repeat the question?

7           MR. FITZHENRY:  Sure.  It wasn't, it

8 wasn't well said.

9        Q.  So you have not tried to examine the

10 reasons why the company's budgeted amount changed

11 to the actual amount in each of the years indicated

12 on your chart, have you?

13           MS. ERICSON:  I'm going to object based

14 upon the question asking why the company did

15 something.  That would call for speculation on Ms.

16 Everson's part.

17           MR. FITZHENRY:  That's not the question

18 that was asked.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Can I have the question

20 read back?

21              (The reporter read the question.)

22           JUDGE JONES:  Was that your question?

23           MR. FITZHENRY:  I'm not so sure.  Can I

24 re-ask the question?



266

1           JUDGE JONES:  You can re-ask the

2 question, and I will assume the objection is the

3 same.  I am only saying that because if you are not

4 sure that that was, your question, really captured

5 by the reporter.

6           MR. FITZHENRY:  I will ask it again.

7        Q.  Ms. Everson, you did not investigate

8 the reasons behind why the company reduced the

9 amount of actual expenditures for charitable

10 contributions from the budgeted amount, did you?

11           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Hold off.  Is

12 your objection still the same, or is there -- is it

13 not?  Ms. Ericson?  Ms. Ericson, is your objection

14 the same?

15           MS. ERICSON:  I'm sorry, can you repeat

16 the question?

17           JUDGE JONES:  Well, we have gone through

18 it twice.  Do you want to --

19           MS. ERICSON:  I could not hear the court

20 reporter reading it back, so --

21           JUDGE JONES:  Oh, well, Mr. Fitzhenry

22 re-asked, he re-asked the question.  Did you hear

23 that?

24           MS. ERICSON:  Yes.
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1           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Go ahead, ask

2 it again.

3           MR. FITZHENRY:  Sure.

4        Q.  Ms. Everson, you did not investigate

5 the reasons behind why the company reduced or

6 changed the amount actually expended for charitable

7 contributions from the budget or not, did you?

8           JUDGE JONES:  Hold off.

9           MS. ERICSON:  She can answer that.

10           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

11        Q.  You may answer.

12        A.  Only to the extent that 2010 through

13 2012 when Mr. Kennedy described the economic

14 conditions, but other than those years, no, I did

15 not investigate why it was different from the

16 actual --

17            JUDGE JONES:  Can you see if you can

18 kind of adjust that microphone a little bit?

19        A.  It is mostly because I was not turned

20 toward it.

21            JUDGE JONES:  Yeah, or at least turn

22 the microphone to where you will be speaking, one

23 way or the other.  I think that will help.  It is

24 kind of tight quarters there, so kind of a constant
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1 challenge there matching up the voices with the,

2 with the mic.

3        A.  Thank you.

4        Q.  Let me ask you to turn to page 10 of

5 your rebuttal testimony and ask you to look at your

6 testimony lines 154 through 156.

7        A.  I see that.

8        Q.  Okay.  Again, you have relied on the

9 company's charitable contributions in the years

10 2010, '11 and '12 in support of your

11 recommendation, correct?

12        A.  Well, that's the time period that I

13 used for the recoverable amount.  I reviewed all of

14 the years.

15        Q.  And for the period up through the time

16 of the merger is it fair to say that the charitable

17 contribution amounts that were incurred would have

18 been by the three different legacy companies that

19 were in existence at that time?

20        A.  I believe that's true.

21        Q.  So at least a portion of your data set

22 does take into account the CILCO, CIPS and IP

23 charitable contributions in 2010 up until the time

24 of the merger, correct?
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1        A.  Read that again.

2        Q.  So I'm clear about what you said

3 earlier, for the year 2010 up until the time of the

4 merger the amount of the charitable contributions

5 that are shown on your exhibit in your chart would

6 have reflected the individualized charitable

7 contributions from each of those utilities,

8 correct?

9        A.  I know the company merged during that

10 period, so it was a transitional period.

11        Q.  So the answer to my question is yes?

12        A.  It was a transitional period.  I think

13 it reflects both a little bit of the legacy, and it

14 ended up being AIC.

15        Q.  Let's talk a little bit about your

16 Missouri Leadership Foundation disallowance, if we

17 could.

18        A.  All right.

19        Q.  You understand that the focus of that

20 foundation is on the annual development of women

21 who live or work in the greater St. Louis area?

22        A.  Can you give me the page number?

23        Q.  No, I don't have a page number.  I'm

24 just asking if that's your understanding.
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1        A.  Okay.  Ask it again, then.

2        Q.  With regard to the Missouri Leadership

3 Foundation, do you have an understanding that its

4 focus is on the annual development of women who

5 live or work in the greater St. Louis area?

6        A.  I will read my testimony.  I did

7 testify about the Greater Missouri Leadership

8 Foundation and went on their web site and provided

9 the information that describes a session and the

10 focus as the foundation describes --

11        Q.  Right.

12        A.  -- its activities.

13        Q.  So the answer to my question is you

14 don't know?

15        A.  I'm sorry.  Read the question again.

16            MR. FITZHENRY:  Your Honor, can I have

17 it read back?

18                  (The reporter read the question.)

19        A.  Yes, I believe that --

20        Q.  Okay.  You understand that the greater

21 St. Louis area also include what is sometimes

22 referred to as Metro East?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  And Metro East is part of the State of
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1 Illinois, correct?

2        A.  It is but other --

3        Q.  Sorry.

4        A.  It is when they describe that -- this

5 is, again, from the Greater Missouri Leadership

6 Foundation description of their experience, their

7 experience they provide.  It has a state focus on

8 Missouri, and this appears to me to be similar to

9 the disallowances that the Commission has been

10 concerned with.

11        Q.  I understand.  I understand it is your

12 testimony, but to be clear, you have already agreed

13 that it takes into account the greater St. Louis

14 area, and the greater St. Louis area includes Metro

15 East which is Illinois.  We have got that agreed

16 to, correct?

17        A.  That's the area.

18        Q.  Do you know whether women from Ameren

19 Illinois have attended this conference?

20        A.  I believe the company indicated that

21 some women employed by Ameren do attend it or

22 regularly attend it.

23        Q.  And you're a professional accountant,

24 are you not?
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1        A.  Yes.

2        Q.  And accountants like lawyers from time

3 to time attend seminars in order to be brought up

4 to speed regarding current developments in their

5 profession, correct?

6        A.  Not if you work with the state.

7        Q.  Well, you know, that's why I asked like

8 lawyers.  Maybe you knew about that.  But let me --

9        A.  But yes, we go to continuing education.

10        Q.  I knew you were going to say that.

11        But let's say there is a seminar for

12 accountants on new accounting rules and that takes

13 place in Michigan.  That same seminar might be of

14 interest --

15           MS. ERICSON:  Objection.  I'm going to

16 object based on relevance here.

17           JUDGE JONES:  Let Counsel finish his

18 question.  We will go from there.

19           MR. FITZHENRY:  It is a hypothetical if

20 that helps.

21        Q.  There is a seminar on new accounting

22 rules.  It is taking place in Michigan.  That same

23 seminar on new accounting rules might be of

24 interest to accountants practicing in Illinois,
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1 correct?

2           JUDGE JONES:  Hold off.  Do you have an

3 objection to that question, then, Ms. Ericson?

4           MS. ERICSON:  I will renew my objection

5 based on --

6           JUDGE JONES:  What is the objection?

7           MS. ERICSON:  Relevance.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

9           MR. FITZHENRY:  I don't know -- just

10 simply saying it is a matter of relevance, I don't

11 understand the objection.  The witness is making a

12 disallowance in part that she has said here on the

13 stand and in her testimony about the location of

14 where the seminar might take place, this particular

15 leadership council for women, and my point being is

16 that the company's point being that location is not

17 necessarily determinative of whether or not an

18 expense should be allowed or disallowed.  But what

19 is important from the company's perspective is

20 whether or not there is good information to be

21 learned whether it is an accountant taking a

22 seminar in Michigan or not.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Your question is a

24 hypothetical one.
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1           MR. FITZHENRY:  Right.

2           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  I will allow

3 the question.  Objection overruled.

4        A.  As long as the seminar does not focus

5 on Michigan issues as is the case with the

6 Missouri, Greater Missouri Leadership Foundation,

7 then it could be relevant.

8        Q.  Okay.  It could be relevant.

9           MR. FITZHENRY:  Okay.  Thank you.

10 That's all of the questions that I have.

11           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you,

12 Mr. Fitzhenry.

13        Ms. Ericson, do you have any redirect?

14           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, can we take a

15 short break so I can consult with the witness via

16 phone?

17           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, we can do that --

18           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you.

19           JUDGE JONES:  -- for five minutes.

20                 (A break was taken.)

21           JUDGE JONES:  I think we're ready to

22 resume.

23           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Ericson, any redirect?
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1           MS. ERICSON:  No redirect from staff at

2 this time.

3           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

4 Thank you, Ms. Everson.

5           THE WITNESS: Thank you.

6           JUDGE JONES:  Off the record.

7                  (Discussion off the record.)

8           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on

9 record.  We will hereby break for lunch until 1:15.

10              (A lunch break was taken.)

11           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  I

12 think the next order of business, unless that has

13 changed, would be cross-examination and related

14 events with respect to the Boggs testimony.

15        So what did you want to do next, call

16 Mr. Boggs to the stand?  Is that the next step?

17           MR. O'BRIEN:  Well, I think, your Honor,

18 if we could --

19           JUDGE JONES:  Do you want to do the

20 other?

21           MR. O'BRIEN:  -- move these into the

22 record first before Mr. Boggs is call provided

23 staff doesn't object to that.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Yeah, if that's, if that's
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1 acceptable to the others, that's fine.

2           MR. DEARMONT:  No objection from the

3 company.

4           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  You can go

5 ahead and present that and go from there.

6           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honor.  At

7 this time pursuant to an agreement with the

8 company, the people move to submit into the record

9 the following set of data request responses from

10 the company in response to the people's data

11 requests in lieu of cross-examination of company

12 witness Karen Ulta, and the data request responses

13 are as follows:  AG 2.15, AG 2.16, AG 2.21, AG

14 4.12, AG 4.12R or Revised, and AG 4.12R2, AG

15 4.12R3, AG 19.08, AG 19.10, AG 19.21, and AG 19.22.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are those to

17 comprise a group exhibit?  Was that the intent?

18           MR. DOSHI:  That's right, your Honor.

19 We are marking this set of data requests responses

20 as AG Cross Exhibit 4.

21           MR. O'BRIEN:  Your Honor, I have a copy

22 of that 4.12R3 for your packet.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Does anyone

24 else need to see 4.12R3 before we continue?
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1        Okay.  Are you offering this group exhibit

2 into the evidentiary record at this time?

3           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, we are, your Honor.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Are there any

5 clarifications or objections to the admission of

6 the group, AG Group Cross Exhibit 4 which is

7 comprised of the DR responses that were stated for

8 the record?

9        All right.  Let the record show there are

10 not.  AG Cross Exhibit No. 4, which is a group

11 exhibit, is hereby admitted into the evidentiary

12 record.

13                  (AG Cross Exhibit 4

14                   admitted.)

15           JUDGE JONES:  Will you be filing a copy

16 of that on e-Docket?

17           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, we will, your Honor.

18           JUDGE JONES:  So 14 days is given for

19 that purpose.  I think it was mentioned that there

20 were limited copies available of the last page, AG

21 4.12R3.

22        Will you provide copies of that page to

23 anyone that requests it in the meantime?

24           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, we will, your Honor.
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Anything else regarding

2 that exhibit?

3        Let the record show there is not.  Was

4 there anything else, then, before Mr. Boggs is

5 called?

6           MR. ROBERTSON:  Ryan Robertson on behalf

7 of IIEC.  We also have a cross, I believe in lieu

8 of cross-examination of Ms. Altoff, and I would

9 like to enter that into the record also.  It is

10 data response from the company IIEC 4.01.

11            MR. DEARMONT:  No objection, your

12 Honor.

13           JUDGE JONES:  And that is a two-page

14 document; is that correct?

15           MR. ROBERTSON:  Yes, your Honor.

16           JUDGE JONES:  And that's being offered

17 at this time; is that right?

18           MR. ROBERTSON:  Yes, your Honor.

19           JUDGE JONES:  I think the company

20 indicated no objection.

21        Does anybody else have any clarification or

22 objection with respect to IIEC Cross Exhibit No.

23 1?

24        Let the record show they do not at this
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1 time.  Let the record show that IIEC Cross Exhibit

2 No. 1 is admitted into the evidentiary record.

3                  (IIEC Cross Exhibit 1

4                  admitted.)

5           JUDGE JONES:  Will you be providing a

6 copy of that on e-Docket within 14 days?

7           MR. ROBERTSON:  Yes, your Honor.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Other parties received a

9 copy of this document, Mr. Robertson?

10           MR. ROBERTSON:  What is that, your

11 Honor?

12           JUDGE JONES:  Have the other parties been

13 provided a copy?

14           MR. ROBERTSON:  Yes, I just did.

15           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, I did not

16 receive a copy of that.

17           JUDGE JONES:  Would you like a copy

18 provided to Mr. Oliver?

19           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Ericson, Mr. Olivero

20 has just been given a copy; is that sufficient?

21           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you, yes.

22           MR. O'BRIEN:  Your Honor, if you don't

23 mind, could I just ask Ms. Ericson if she was able

24 to receive my copies of the cross exhibits that we
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1 had for Mr. Boggs?

2           JUDGE JONES:  Sure, you can ask her.

3           MS. ERICSON:  The email?

4           MR. O'BRIEN:  Yes, correct.

5           MS. ERICSON:  Yes, that's fine.

6           MR. O'BRIEN:  Okay.  Good.  My Internet

7 has been spotty, so I just wanted to make sure.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Is there anything else

9 before we move along to Mr. Boggs?

10        Let the record show there is not.

11        So is staff ready to call the next staff

12 witness?

13           MS. ERICSON:  Yes, your Honor.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Sir, please remain

15 standing and raise your right hand and be sworn.

16                CHRISTOPHER L. BOGGS,

17 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

18 as follows:

19           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please have a

20 seat.

21           MS. ERICSON:  May we proceed?

22           JUDGE JONES:  Yes.

23

24
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1                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MS. ERICSON:

3        Q.  This is Christine Ericson on behalf of

4 Commission Staff.  Good afternoon, Mr. Boggs.

5        A.  Good afternoon.

6        Q.  Is the microphone on?

7        A.  It is now.

8        Q.  Thank you.  Please state your full name

9 for the record and spell your last name.

10        A.  Okay.  It is Christopher L. Boggs,

11 B-O-G-G-S.

12        Q.  Who is your employer and what is your

13 business address?

14        A.  I'm employed by the Illinois Commerce

15 Commission, 527 East Capitol Avenue, Springfield,

16 Illinois 62701.

17        Q.  What is your position at the Illinois

18 Commerce Commission?

19        A.  I'm a rates analyst.

20        Q.  Did you prepare written exhibits for

21 submittal in this proceeding?

22        A.  I did.

23        Q.  Do you have before you a document which

24 has been marked for identification as ICC Staff
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1 Exhibit 6.0 which consists of a cover page, table

2 of contents, pages of narrative testimony that run

3 from page numbers 2 through 59 and attached

4 schedules 6.1 through 6.6 and Attachment 6.1 and

5 6.2 entitled Direct Testimony of Christopher L.

6 Boggs, Rates Analyst for the Department of

7 Financial Analysis Division, Illinois Commerce

8 Commission filed June 11, 2013?

9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  Did you prepare this document for

11 presentation in this matter?

12        A.  I did.

13        Q.  And do you also have before you a

14 document which has been marked for identification

15 as ICC Staff Exhibit 15.0 which consists of a cover

16 page, table of contents, narrative, rebuttal

17 testimony pages 2 through 30 entitled Rebuttal

18 Testimony of Christopher L. Boggs, Rate Analyst,

19 Department of Financial Analysis Division, Illinois

20 Commerce Commission, filed August 7th, 2013?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  Did you prepare that document for

23 presentation in this matter?

24        A.  I did.
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1        Q.  Do you have any corrections to make to

2 ICC Staff Exhibit 6.0 or 15.0?

3        A.  I do not.

4        Q.  Is the information contained in ICC

5 Staff Exhibit 6.0 and 15.0 true and correct to the

6 best of your knowledge?

7        A.  It is.

8        Q.  If I were to ask the same questions as

9 set forth in ICC Staff Exhibit 6.0 and 15.0, would

10 your responses be the same today?

11        A.  They would.

12           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, I move for the

13 admission into evidence of ICC Staff Exhibit 6.0

14 and ICC Staff Exhibit 15.0.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Any

16 clarification or objections?

17        Let the record show there are not.

18        One question regarding the filing date of

19 6.0.  I see the list shows 6-11.  I have a note

20 here to doublecheck the e-Docket to see if that

21 6-11 or 6-12 as the e-Docket file date.

22           MS. ERICSON:  We have June 11th, but we

23 can doublecheck that.

24           MR. OLIVERO:  This is Jim Olivero.  Not
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1 that this would help, I believe that we had filed

2 his the day after we had a late filing on the 11th,

3 and his may have been on the docket on June 12th.

4 You may be correct on that.  I don't have access to

5 the e-Docket right now, but --

6           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you for the

7 clarification.

8           MR. OLIVERO:  But I believe you are

9 right, Judge.  It was filed on June 12th.

10           JUDGE JONES:  Yeah, I mean, it is not an

11 issue at all, it is just if we admit something as

12 it appears on e-Docket, then just the dates need to

13 match up whatever e-Docket shows as the filing date

14 which sometimes is not maybe next day depending.

15        In any event, let the record show that the

16 direct and rebuttal testimony of Mr. Boggs 6.0 and

17 15.0 are admitted into the evidentiary record as

18 filed on e-Docket on the dates noted subject to

19 doublechecking the e-Docket file date on the direct

20 testimony 6.0.

21                  (ICC Staff Exhibits 6.0 and 15.0

22                  admitted.)

23           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you, your Honor.

24 Mr. Boggs is now available for cross-examination.
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  It appears

2 that there are several parties.  Whose counsel will

3 be doing some cross-examination of Mr. Boggs?

4 Who would like to lead off with that?

5           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may the people

6 go first?

7           JUDGE JONES:  Sure.  Go ahead.

8           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honor.

9                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

10 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

11        Q.  Mr. Boggs, my name is Sameer Doshi.  I

12 work for the Attorney General's office, and I just

13 have a couple very brief questions for you.

14        I would like if you could, please, turn to

15 your rebuttal testimony, ICC Staff Exhibit 15.0 on

16 page 29?

17        A.  I'm there.

18        Q.  Thank you.  On page 29 at line 557, you

19 state, if an adjustment is warranted the

20 appropriate adjustment would be to the billing

21 determinates used to calculate rates rather than to

22 the revenues to be recovered.

23        At the top of page 30 at line 568, you

24 state that you believe the adjustment is not
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1 necessary.

2        Now, I know that you believe, as I stated,

3 the adjustment is not necessary, but hypothetically

4 if an adjustment is warranted as you stated at line

5 557, I would like to ask you a couple of questions

6 about how that adjustment might be performed.

7        So if you could, do you have, by the way,

8 the people's testimony in front of you?

9        A.  I do not.

10           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may I approach

11 the witness to provide an exhibit from the people's

12 testimony?

13           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

14           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.

15        Q.  Mr. Boggs, I've provided you People's

16 Exhibit 6.2, and I believe I am referencing, I

17 think it is page 6 of Exhibit 6.2 which is the

18 company's response to data request AG 2.18, and if

19 you turn to the attachment of the response to AG

20 2.18, if you look at line 11 which is revenue for

21 the transmission of gas for others, if you look at

22 the column for test year 2014, what, what figure

23 did the company provide in that --

24        A.  I believe 785,279,000.
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1        Q.  And I believe, is that thousands?  I

2 think it is.

3        A.  Sorry, yes, it would be in the

4 thousands, correct, so 785 million.

5        Q.  So is that therms?

6        A.  That's what it appears to be, yes.

7        Q.  All right.  Thank you.

8        Mr. Boggs, do you have in front of you the

9 company's Schedule E5?

10        A.  I do not.

11        Q.  Okay.  I don't have a copy either, so I

12 will move onto my next question.

13        Mr. Boggs, just before your testimony the

14 people moved into evidence AG Cross Exhibit 4.

15           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may I approach

16 the witness?

17           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

18        Q.  Mr. Boggs, I've just provided you with

19 the company's response to data request AG 19.08.

20 Have you seen this before by any chance?

21        A.  I have.

22        Q.  Can you describe the basic content of

23 the chart on that response?

24        A.  It is a table for the 12 months into
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1 June 2013 for the therm volumes of each customer

2 classification.

3        Q.  Thank you.  And in the transportation

4 class what amount of therms is indicated for the 12

5 months ended June 2013?

6        A.  761,910,858.

7        Q.  Thank you.  So backtracking a little

8 bit to the previous document that I showed you, the

9 response to data request AG 2.18 attached from the

10 People's Exhibit 6.2, it was indicated that the

11 company is forecasting in test year 785,279,000

12 therms of transportation of gas for others; is that

13 correct?

14        A.  Yes, that's what it appears.

15        Q.  And would you agree that it would be

16 appropriate to subtract from that amount the sales

17 for GDS-7 customers?

18           MS. ERICSON:  I'm going to object at

19 this point.  This is the first time that we have,

20 that Mr. Boggs has been provided with these or told

21 that he'd be crossed on these.  I'm not sure there

22 is a foundation that's been laid and I'm not sure

23 it is appropriate to ask these questions of Mr.

24 Boggs.
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1           MR. DEARMONT:  As an additional point of

2 clarification perhaps leading to an objection, are

3 we still talking hypothetically here or --

4           MR. DOSHI:  The question is to pinpoint

5 Mr. Boggs' view of if an adjustment is warranted as

6 he stated at line 557 of his rebuttal testimony, he

7 says the appropriate adjustment would be to the

8 billing determinates.  So we'd like to elicit Mr.

9 Boggs' view as to what that adjustment would be.

10           MR. DEARMONT:  Hypothetically had an

11 adjustment to billing determinates been proposed,

12 correct?

13           MR. DOSHI:  That's correct.

14           MR. DEARMONT:  Judge, perhaps in a

15 similar vein I would lodge a relevancy objection to

16 this line of questioning.  I don't believe any type

17 of adjustment of that nature has been proposed in

18 this case by my client represented by any party to

19 this matter for that matter.

20        So to that extent I would object to this

21 line of questioning as irrelevant, but to the

22 extent you want to proceed in a hypothetical

23 manner, that may be different.

24           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, one of the
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1 people's witnesses has proposed a similar

2 adjustment to the billing determinates.  So we're

3 seeking to elicit Mr. Boggs' view of what

4 adjustment might be warranted under the assumption

5 as he posits in line 557 if an adjustment is

6 warranted.

7           JUDGE JONES:  Well, which AG witness are

8 you referring to?

9           MR. DOSHI:  Mr. David Effron.

10           JUDGE JONES:  Is that the adjustment,

11 are you referring to the adjustment that is in the

12 question portion of the question posed to Mr. Boggs

13 on page 29 of his, of his exhibit?

14           MR. DOSHI:  That's correct, your Honor.

15           MR. DEARMONT:  Your Honor, if I may

16 respond, maybe I can perhaps shed some additional

17 light on this issue.

18        I mean, I think the question that you raise

19 goes to the heart of this issue.  It is my

20 understanding, anyway, that no witness has proposed

21 an adjustment to billing determinates in this case.

22 That's the very point of this line of questioning

23 and the basis of my client's position, as I

24 understand the staff's position as well.
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1        So if we are going to couch this discussion

2 in terms of a hypothetical adjustment to billing

3 determinates, that's one thing.  But to bootstrap

4 some type of recommendation that does not exist

5 currently in the case to Mr. Boggs' testimony, I

6 believe it would be inappropriate.

7           JUDGE JONES:  In Mr. Boggs' testimony he

8 is responding to an adjustment proposed by

9 Mr. Effron; is that correct?

10           MR. DOSHI:  That's correct.

11           MR. DEARMONT:  I hate to speak out of

12 turn, Judge, but it is not adjustment to billing

13 determinates, it is a proposed adjustment.

14           JUDGE JONES:  If you don't mind.

15           MR. DEARMONT:  Yes, sir.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Now, it appears what Mr.

17 Boggs goes on to say that if an adjustment is

18 warranted, that is as proposed by Mr. Effron, the

19 appropriate adjustment would be to the billing

20 determinates used to calculate rates rather than

21 the revenues to be recovered.

22        So it appears what Mr. Boggs is saying is

23 that if the Effron adjustment in general is

24 considered or adopted, there should be modification
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1 to it, in Mr. Boggs' opinion to utilize billing

2 determinates rather than revenues.  Now, does

3 anybody take issue with that reading?  Counsel?

4           MR. DOSHI:  I agree, your Honor, with

5 the way you read his testimony there.

6           JUDGE JONES:  I mean, he is on cross

7 right now.  Although he is -- although he does not

8 join in Mr. Effron's proposed adjustment, it

9 appears Mr. Boggs is saying if such adjustment is

10 used it should be done differently, proposing an

11 alternative way to do it.  So I don't see how that

12 is somehow strictly speaking a hypothetical

13 adjustment.  He is proposing an alternative method

14 to in the event that the Effron proposal is

15 adopted.

16        Now, given all of that it appears that the

17 line of questioning is relevant and that there is

18 foundation for it unless I'm missing something,

19 so --

20           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, the objection

21 goes to asking him to do calculations on the stand.

22 Just not sure that's appropriate, but if your Honor

23 would like to hear that, I guess --

24           JUDGE JONES:  Well, it is true we have



293

1 more than one adjustment at play here.  I think, I

2 think that one of those adjustments at least is on

3 relevancy basis, correct?

4           MR. DEARMONT:  Yes, Judge.

5           MS. ERICSON:  Yes.  We also point out

6 that these questions could have been asked in

7 discovery.

8           JUDGE JONES:  Well, this is cross.

9           MS. ERICSON:  Okay.

10           JUDGE JONES:  I mean, I don't see how it

11 is improper cross.  I think there is a foundation

12 question raised, but I am having a hard time seeing

13 where there is a missing foundation here.  It's

14 been called a hypothetical, but I don't know an

15 alternative methodology for implementing somebody

16 else's proposal if you don't agree with the basic

17 proposal makes it a hypothetical in the true sense.

18        So that is how this appears to me to be

19 what Mr. Boggs is addressing.  If I am

20 misinterpreting this, then I invite the parties to

21 step in and correct that interpretation.  But we

22 have kind of a situation here where we have a

23 witness and we have counsel from three different,

24 three different parties here kind of weighing in on
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1 this.  It concerns a piece of testimony essentially

2 offered by a staff witness with regard to a

3 proposal proposed by another party's witness, and

4 the staff person is attempting to indicate how that

5 would work better if it were done differently if it

6 were to be adopted ultimately even though he is not

7 supporting the adoption of it at all, or at least

8 in the first instance.

9        Now, the objection I will get back to that

10 in a minute.  The other objection apparently is he

11 is being asked to do calculations on the stand, and

12 I would almost have to back up way up to the

13 question to see if what he is being asked to do in

14 terms of calculations and whether that is an undue

15 burden on the witness to perform calculations while

16 sort of on the spot.  So we may have to get back to

17 that one, but let me focus on the relevancy

18 objection for just a minute.

19        I don't mean to stop all dialogue on that.

20 If my, what I assume to be happening there in Mr.

21 Boggs' testimony is not correct on the part of

22 Ameren Illinois or others, feel free to step in at

23 this point and indicate where you believe that

24 understanding is incorrect.
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1        Anyone?

2        All right.  All right.  Let's get back to

3 the objection from Ms. Ericson.  I guess Mr. Boggs

4 has had a few minutes since the question was posed.

5        Is your question -- is that segment of your

6 objection, that basis for your objection, is that

7 still pending in your view, Ms. Ericson?

8           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, to the extent

9 that you would find it useful to continue in the

10 question it is fine.  I do think that we would like

11 to avoid undue burden in terms of calculations and

12 excessive work in that regard on the stand at this

13 point.  I think Mr. Boggs can answer the question.

14           JUDGE JONES:  That question you are able

15 to answer?

16        A.  If you could put it into proper context

17 again, if you could re-ask the question, I'd

18 appreciate it.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Go ahead, we will see.

20           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honor.  I am

21 going to refrain from asking Mr. Boggs to pull out

22 a calculator or do any superhuman mental math.  I

23 would just like to ask him the arithmetic method

24 that would be used to make an adjustment to billing
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1 determinates if an adjustment were warranted.

2        Q.  (By Mr. Doshi)  So my question to Mr.

3 Boggs is would it be appropriate to take the

4 785,279,000 therms of transportation for others in

5 test year 2014 indicated on data request response

6 AG 2.18 attached and from that number subtract the

7 amount of GDS-7 sales that the company indicated on

8 its schedule E5 to determine the billing

9 determinates that the company is impliedly

10 proposing in the transport class?

11        A.  It appears that the adjustment made

12 would be a subtraction from the 785,000 or 785

13 million.  That is the weather normalized therm

14 usage projection for 2014, whereas on the response

15 to AG 19.08, the therms are for actual usage

16 through June of 2013 of 761,910,000.  So the answer

17 would be I would subtract those two numbers.

18        Q.  Mr. Boggs, would it be appropriate to

19 subtract from the 785 million on AG 2.18, would it

20 be appropriate to subtract the amount of GDS-7

21 sales that the company had indicated on its

22 schedule E5?

23        I don't have a copy of that schedule right

24 now, so I'm not going to cite to a number.
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1        A.  What, what figure are you trying to get

2 at?  I'm not sure what you are -- you are talking

3 about an adjustment, but I'm not sure what you are

4 trying to get at.

5        Q.  The adjustment would be to the billing

6 determinates in the transportation customer class

7 that the company is impliedly presenting in its

8 filing to a final figure after an adjustment.

9           MR. DEARMONT:  Your Honor, I would

10 object to that question.  I think it perhaps

11 mischaracterizes our testimony by styling our

12 billing determinates as --

13           MS. ERICSON:  Can you speak into the

14 microphone?

15           MR. DEARMONT:  I would object to that

16 question.  It mischaracterizes our testimony by

17 stating we are implicitly proffering some type of

18 recommendation.  I believe it also calls for

19 speculation to the extent perhaps that Mr. Boggs

20 has any questions about what is or is not found in

21 schedule E5.

22           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

23           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, the people are

24 trying to elicit Mr. Boggs' view of what adjustment
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1 should be made to billing determinates.  So we're

2 seeking what is Mr. Boggs' view of the billing

3 determinates in the transport class under the

4 company's filing and what should be the adjusted

5 amount.

6           JUDGE JONES:  This is all with reference

7 to passage on page 29 of his rebuttal testimony?

8           MR. DOSHI:  That's correct, your Honor.

9           JUDGE JONES:  I think part of the

10 objection went to the use of the term implied.  If

11 you want to respond to that?

12           MR. DOSHI:  Perhaps I can strike the

13 word impliedly.  Perhaps it wasn't necessary.

14           JUDGE JONES:  So you just want to ask

15 another question?

16           MR. DOSHI:  Sure.

17           JUDGE JONES:  We will see what happens.

18        Q.  Mr. Boggs, to state the billing

19 determinates in the transportation class for the

20 test year, according to the company would it be

21 appropriate to seek 785,279,000 indicated for the

22 test year at, I believe line 11 of AG 2.18 attached

23 which is in People's Exhibit 6.2, from that number

24 subtract the amount of GDS-7 sales that the company
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1 has indicated in its filing?

2        A.  I believe that would be correct.

3        Q.  Thank you, Mr. Boggs.  And would the

4 final adjusted figure for billing determinate in

5 the transport class be the 761,910,858 therms for

6 12 months ending June 2013 shown in the company's

7 response to data request AG 19.08?

8        A.  Is your question is that the figure

9 that should be used to determine revenues, those

10 are the billing determinates to determine overall

11 revenues?  Is that what your question is?

12        Q.  My question is if an adjustment is

13 warranted which is the predicate to your somewhat

14 hypothetical statement on page 29, would that

15 761,910,858 therms be the appropriate figure to use

16 for the billing determinate in the transportation

17 class?

18        A.  I would say yes.

19           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, Mr. Boggs.

20 That's all my questions.

21           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, may we take a

22 short break to consult?

23           JUDGE JONES:  Well, I think there is

24 still more cross, though, from --
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1           MS. ERICSON:  Okay.  Want to do it all

2 at the end, that's fine.

3           JUDGE JONES:  Yeah, I think that

4 probably would be better.  I think there is still

5 cross from counsel for IIEC and also Ameren

6 Illinois.

7        Mr. Robertson, you still have questions for

8 this --

9           MR. ROBERTSON:  Yes, your Honor.

10                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

11 QUESTIONS BY MR. ROBERTSON:

12        Q.  Good afternoon, Mr. Boggs.

13        A.  Good afternoon.

14        Q.  My name is Ryan Robertson.  I have a

15 few questions for you on behalf of the Illinois

16 Industrial Energy Consumers.

17        My first question would be do you believe

18 the cost should be allocated classes based on cost

19 causation?

20        A.  I do.

21        Q.  Okay.  I would like you to refer to

22 your testimony, your rebuttal testimony, page 21,

23 lines 385 to 387.  Are you there?

24        A.  Yes.
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1        Q.  Okay.  And at that point you testified

2 that investments associated with a distribution

3 system cannot be justified solely by demands on a

4 peak day; is that correct?

5        A.  Yes.

6        Q.  Okay.  Let's assume that a gas system's

7 therm peak day demand occurs in January.

8        Would you agree that the system must be

9 designed to meet that annual system therm peak day

10 demand in January?

11        A.  Ask the question again, please.

12        Q.  Okay.  We will assume that the gas

13 system's therm peak day demand occurs in January.

14        Would you agree that the system, the gas

15 system must be designed to meet that annual system

16 therm peak day demand in January?

17        A.  Yes.

18        Q.  Okay.  Would you agree that the system

19 peak day demand consists of each class' coincident

20 peak day demand?

21        A.  Yes.

22           JUDGE JONES:  Have you switched out of

23 your hypothetical?

24           MR. ROBERTSON:  Still in.  No, it still
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1 will be a hypothetical.

2        Q.  So if you design that gas system for

3 any demand day other than the peak day demand, day

4 that occurred in January, you would not be able to

5 meet the system's peak day demand in January; is

6 that correct?

7        A.  It would be correct if demand was

8 higher than peak, than peak demand day.

9        Q.  All right.  So if you design a gas

10 system for peak day system demand, you should be

11 able to meet the demand on all other days all else

12 being equal, correct?

13        A.  Correct.

14        Q.  I have another hypothetical for you.

15 Okay.  Assume you only have two customers on a

16 distribution main with a combined peak day demand

17 of 10,000 therms.  Assume that the customers are

18 one mile apart.

19        Would you agree that you would need at

20 least one mile of main to serve these customers

21 with the main sized to meet a demand of 10,000

22 therms?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  Okay.  All else being equal assume that
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1 the customers are three miles apart.

2        Would you agree that you would now need at

3 least three miles of main to serve the customers

4 with the main size to meet the demand of 10,000

5 therms?

6        A.  Yes.

7        Q.  This example would you agree that the

8 peak day demand placed on the distribution main is

9 10,000 therms regardless of whether they are one

10 mile or two miles apart?

11        A.  Yes.

12        Q.  Okay.  Also in this example would you

13 agree all else being equal that the total cost to

14 build the three miles of main are greater than the

15 costs to build one mile of main assuming that per

16 mile cost to install each main is the same?

17        A.  I would assume that, yes.

18           MR. ROBERTSON:  I have no further

19 questions.

20           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.

21           MR. ROBERTSON:  Thank you.

22           JUDGE JONES:  Does Ameren Illinois have

23 some cross?

24           MR. DEARMONT:  Yes, Judge, just a few
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1 brief minutes.

2                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

3 QUESTIONS BY MR. DEARMONT:

4        Q.  Good afternoon, Mr. Boggs.

5        A.  Good afternoon.

6        Q.  The billing determinate calculations,

7 hypothetical or real, that you discussed with

8 counsel for the AG just few minutes ago, have you

9 sponsored those billings determinations in any

10 prefiled testimony filed in this case?

11        A.  I have not.

12        Q.  Okay.  To the best --

13           MS. ERICSON:  Can you put the --

14           MR. DEARMONT:  I apologize.  Do you need

15 me to repeat the question?

16           MS. ERICSON:  Yes, please.  Thank you.

17           MR. DEARMONT:  Sure.

18                  (The reporter read the question.)

19           MS. ERICSON:  If someone is speaking we

20 can't hear.  It's off mic.

21           JUDGE JONES:  That was our court

22 reporter reading back the question and answer.  Do

23 you need it read back again?  Would you like it

24 read back again?
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1           MS. ERICSON:  Like I said, if she is off

2 mic I can't hear what she is saying.

3           JUDGE JONES:  Well, we can turn the mic

4 around if you need to hear it.

5        Would you like to hear it?

6          MS. ERICSON:  Can the attorney tell me

7 what she said?

8                  (The reporter read the question.)

9        Q.  Mr. Boggs, have you had an opportunity

10 to verify the accuracy of the billing determinate

11 adjustment you described previously in discussing

12 the issue with counsel for the AG?

13        A.  I have not.

14        Q.  To the best of your knowledge has any

15 party to this case proposed in prefiled written

16 testimony an adjustment to AIC's E5 billing

17 determinates?

18        A.  I'm not aware of any.

19        Q.  To make sure the record is clear, in

20 fact, you do not believe that a billing determinate

21 adjustment is warranted, correct?

22        A.  That is correct.

23        Q.  And you are not an attorney, correct?

24        A.  That is correct.
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1        Q.  Okay.  With that understanding, had

2 another party wished or desired to propose an

3 adjustment to billing determinates well within

4 appropriate time when would have been the

5 appropriate time to do that?

6        A.  Anytime during discovery.

7        Q.  Discovery is closed, correct?

8        A.  Correct.

9          MR. DEARMONT:  No further questions.

10 Thank you.

11        JUDGE JONES:  I think that concludes cross

12 of the witness.  Let me make sure.

13        Is there any other cross of this witness?

14        Let the record show there is not.

15        Ms. Ericson, do you have redirect, or did

16 you want an opportunity to think about that?

17           MS. ERICSON:  Yes, your Honor, if we can

18 take a short break.

19           JUDGE JONES:  How long do you propose,

20 five minutes?

21           MS. ERICSON:  That should be fine.

22                 (A break was taken.)

23           JUDGE JONES:  Back on the record.  Ms.

24 Ericson, any redirect?
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1           MS. ERICSON:  No, your Honor.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.

3           MS. ERICSON:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr.

4 Boggs.

5           JUDGE JONES:  Now off the record

6 briefly.

7                  (Discussion off the record.)

8           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on the

9 record.  The next witness is another staff witness.

10 Raise your right hand and be sworn.

11                   BURMA C. JONES,

12 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

13 as follows:

14          JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Please be

15 seated.

16                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY MR. SAGONE:

18        Q.  Good afternoon.  This is John Sagone

19 representing staff witnesses of the Illinois

20 Commerce Commission.  Ms. Jones?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  Can you state your full name and spell

23 your last name for the record?

24        A.  Burma C. Jones J-O-N-E-S.
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1        Q.  And who is your employer, and what is

2 your business address?

3        A.  Illinois Commerce Commission, 527 East

4 Capitol Avenue, Springfield, Illinois 62701.

5        Q.  And what is your position at the

6 Illinois Commerce Commission?

7        A.  I'm an accountant in the accounting

8 department of the financial analysis division.

9           MS. ERICSON:  If we can turn the

10 microphone on, please.

11        A.  I thought it was.  Sorry.

12        Q.  Do you have before you a document which

13 has been marked for identification as ICC Staff

14 Exhibit 8.0, the direct testimony of Burma C. Jones

15 which consists of a cover page, table of contents,

16 five pages of narrative testimony which was filed

17 on e-Docket on June 11th, 2013?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  And do you also have before you a

20 document which has been marked for identification

21 as ICC Staff Exhibit 17.0, the rebuttal testimony

22 of Burma C. Jones which consists of a cover page,

23 five pages of narrative testimony which was filed

24 on e-Docket on August 7th, 2012?
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1        A.  Yes.

2        Q.  Did you prepare those documents for

3 presentation in this hearing?

4        A.  Yes.

5        Q.  Do you have any corrections to make to

6 ICC Staff Exhibit 8.0 or to ICC 17.0?

7        A.  No, I do not.

8        Q.  Is the information contained in ICC

9 Staff Exhibit 8.0 and ICC Staff Exhibit 17.0

10 correct to the best of your knowledge?

11        A.  Yes, it is.

12        Q.  And if I were to ask you the same

13 questions today as set forth in ICC Staff Exhibit

14 8.0 and ICC Staff Exhibit 17. 0, would your answers

15 be the same?

16        A.  Yes.

17           MR. SAGONE:  Your Honor, I would move

18 for admission into evidence ICC Staff Exhibit 8.0

19 and ICC Staff Exhibit 17.0.

20           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  Are there any

21 clarifications or objections to those exhibits?

22           MR. FITZHENRY:  No objections.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show the

24 motion is granted.  Those exhibits are admitted
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1 into the evidentiary record as filed on e-Docket

2 which was June 11 for 8.0 and August 11 for 17.0.

3                  (ICC Staff Exhibits 8.0 and 17.0

4                  admitted.)

5           MR. SAGONE:  Thank you, your Honor.  I

6 would tender Ms. Jones now for cross-examination.

7           JUDGE JONES:  It appears that Ameren

8 Illinois has some questions for this witness; is

9 that correct?

10           MR. FITZHENRY:  Yes, your Honor.

11                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

12 QUESTIONS BY MR. FITZHENRY:

13        Q.  Good afternoon, Ms. Jones.  My name is

14 Ed Fitzhenry.  I have some questions about riders

15 PGA, GTA and GSIC.

16        We are in agreement, are we not, that each

17 rider requires a reconciliation?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  And we are in agreement that the

20 reconciliations should be on an annual basis?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  And by annual basis do we mean that the

23 reconciliations should take place on a calendar

24 year basis?
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1        A.  I believe they should, yes.

2        Q.  Okay.  Now, are you familiar with the

3 purpose of rider GTA?

4        A.  I have read the rider.  I think I

5 understand it, yes.

6        Q.  Okay.  What I'm going to do is attempt

7 to characterize my understanding of the purpose of

8 the rider, and you can agree or disagree, okay?

9        A.  Okay.

10        Q.  So as I understand it at a higher

11 level, assuming there is rider SVT in place and

12 that there is customer switching, the contracts

13 that are in place to serve that load that switched

14 would be liquidated, and then the costs associated

15 with the liquidated contracts would be recovered

16 from SVT customers.

17        Does that seem quite right to you?

18           MR. SAGONE:  I have to object.  It is

19 out of the scope of the witness' testimony.  She

20 testified as to tariff language and riders GSIC and

21 regarding SVT.  She wasn't testifying as to the

22 purpose of writer PGA.

23           MR. FITZHENRY:  May I respond?

24           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.
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1           MR. FITZHENRY:  The witness already

2 responded she did read the riders and she did read

3 the purpose section of GTA, and this is a

4 foundation question.  It gets me to other questions

5 about the witness' understanding about some of the

6 language changes that she is proposing or opposing.

7           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Anything further?

8        Well, Mr. Fitzhenry is basically saying he

9 is going to tie this up later in this line of

10 questioning.  So I will allow the question.  In the

11 event that never gets tied up, then the objection

12 can be renewed.

13           MR. FITZHENRY:  Thank you, your Honor.

14        Q.  Ms. Jones, if you would like, I'd be

15 happy to present to you the language from rider GTA

16 which describes the purpose if that would be

17 helpful for you, or we can move forward.

18        A.  I have it here.  Which section,

19 Applicability?

20        Q.  It says, right underneath where it says

21 purpose.  That's what I was trying to summarize in

22 my earlier question.

23        A.  What was the question?

24        Q.  Well, my question was, again, as a
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1 foundation question to some later questions that we

2 agree that the purpose of rider GTA is to, again,

3 in the event there is rider SVT and customer

4 switching, that there are contracts that would be

5 liquidated, and that the costs associated with

6 those liquidated contracts would be recovered from

7 SVT customers, and that's the purpose of rider GTA?

8        A.  That would be my understanding of the

9 purpose.

10        Q.  Okay.  Now, let's assume for a second

11 that there is no rider SVT, all right, and there is

12 no rider GTA.

13        Would it be the case in the ordinary course

14 of a rider PGA reconciliation that the contracts

15 that would otherwise have been subject of rider GTA

16 would be reconciled in a rider PGA reconciliation?

17        A.  Yes.

18        Q.  Okay.  So in a sense would it be fair

19 to say that the contracts which are a subset --

20 strike that.  Sorry.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Just a moment.

22           MR. O'BRIEN:  I believe Mr. Olivero went

23 to get technical support.

24           MR. FITZHENRY:  Should I stop?
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1           JUDGE JONES:  Ms. Ericson, can you hear

2 us?

3           MS. ERICSON:  Your Honor, we can hear

4 you.  We lost the visual, but I can still hear you.

5           JUDGE JONES:  What is the preference of

6 staff counsel?  Do you want to --

7           MR. SAGONE:  I think we can continue.

8           MS. ERICSON:  Yes, I'm fine with

9 continuing.  They will be looking into it, I am

10 sure, on this end.

11           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.  I

12 think I interrupted you there.  I'm not sure.

13           MR. FITZHENRY:  Well, you know, I'm

14 going to ask a different question if I can.

15        Q.  Let's assume that we have that SVT.  It

16 is in place.  We have rider GTA, and we have rider

17 PGA.

18        We want to be sure that in the

19 reconciliation of each that we are accounting for

20 only the costs that are the subject of each rider,

21 correct?

22        A.  Yes, that's the point of a

23 reconciliation.

24        Q.  Right.  We want to be sure there is no
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1 double counting, correct?

2        A.  Yes.

3        Q.  Now, I'm going to turn my attention to

4 rider GSIC, and, again, let me ask you if you had

5 the opportunity to review that rider?

6        A.  Yes.

7        Q.  And in particular did you have the

8 opportunity to review the purpose of the rider?

9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  Okay.  Again I'm going to try to

11 summarize or characterize my understanding of the

12 purpose of the rider.  You can tell me if I am

13 wrong or right, okay?

14        It is my understanding that rider GSIC

15 would account for the costs associated with the

16 assets used to balance and maintain the integrity

17 of the gas distribution system, correct?

18        Does that seem right?

19        A.  Yes.

20        Q.  All right.  And, in fact, in the

21 purpose section of rider GSIC, let me get to my

22 copy, it raises that the system integrity assets

23 will be accounted for separately from the assets

24 secured and recovered through rider PGA, purchased
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1 gas adjustment?

2        A.  Correct.

3        Q.  Now, in a same or similar to the

4 question that I asked you about rider GTA, if there

5 was no rider SVT, then the costs that are described

6 here in the purpose section of rider GSIC would

7 otherwise be accounted for in the context of a

8 rider PGA reconciliation, correct?

9        A.  Correct.

10           MR. FITZHENRY:  Thank you, Ms. Jones.

11 That's all of the questions that I have.

12           JUDGE JONES:  Do you have any redirect?

13           MR. SAGONE:  If I can have a moment with

14 my --

15           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  You may.

16        Is that all right with you, Mr. Fitzhenry?

17           MR. FITZHENRY:  Yes, by all means.

18           JUDGE JONES:  Off the record.

19                 (A break was taken.)

20           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Back on the record.

21 Does staff have any redirect?

22           MR. SAGONE:  Yes, your Honor, we do.

23

24
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1                 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

2 QUESTIONS BY MR. SAGONE:

3        Q.  Ms. Jones, Ameren counsel was

4 discussing several different riders with you during

5 cross-examination.

6        How many riders was Ameren counsel

7 discussing with you?

8        A.  Three riders.

9        Q.  And those were riders GTA, GSIC and

10 PGA, correct?

11        A.  Correct.

12        Q.  Does each rider allow for its own

13 reconciliation?

14        A.  Yes, each rider actually requires its

15 own reconciliation.

16        Q.  And what is the purpose of a

17 reconciliation?

18        A.  The purpose of a reconciliation is to

19 match prudent costs with the revenues collected

20 under the rider and to determine if there is any

21 under or over-recovery and then the treatment of

22 that under or over-recovery.

23        Q.  And will the revenue from riders GTA,

24 GSIC -- GTA and GSIC flow through rider PGA?
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1        A.  My understanding is that they won't.

2 In response to a data request the company answered

3 that rider GTA revenue will not impact rider PGA,

4 and rider GSIC revenue will not impact rider PGA.

5 So if the revenues are not in there, you know,

6 there is nothing to compare the costs.  So there

7 can't be a reconciliation.

8           MR. SAGONE:  Thank you.  No further

9 questions.

10           JUDGE JONES:  Recross?

11           MR. FITZHENRY:  No, no cross.

12           JUDGE JONES:  Is Ameren Illinois going

13 to call a witness?

14           MR. STURTEVANT:  Yes, your Honor.  The

15 company would call Mr. Ronald Stafford, sir.

16           JUDGE JONES:  Please raise your right

17 hand and be sworn as a witness.

18                   RONALD STAFFORD,

19 having been duly sworn, was examined and testified

20 as follows:

21                  DIRECT EXAMINATION

22 QUESTIONS BY MR. STURTEVANT:

23        Q.  Good afternoon, Mr. Stafford.  Can you

24 state your full name and business address for the
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1 record, please?

2        A.  Yes.  Ronald D. Stafford.

3        Q.  And your business address?

4        A.  Business address is 1901 Chouteau

5 Avenue, St. Louis, Missouri 63103.

6        Q.  By whom are you employed?

7        A.  Ameren Illinois.

8        Q.  And what is your position with Ameren

9 Illinois?

10        A.  Director of Regulatory Accounting.

11        Q.  Mr. Stafford, I have what has been

12 marked as Ameren Exhibit 2.0 Revised, revised

13 direct testimony of Ronald D. Stafford accompanying

14 exhibits Ameren Exhibits 2.1 through 2.6.

15        Did you prepare or direct the preparation

16 of this direct testimony?

17           MS. ERICSON:  Can you please speak into

18 the microphone?

19           MR. STURTEVANT:  Sorry.  This seems to

20 be an ongoing problem today.  I apologize.  I will

21 repeat the question.

22        Q.  Mr. Stafford, did you prepare or direct

23 the preparation of this direct testimony?

24        A.  Yes, I did.
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1        Q.  And then Mr. Stafford, I have what has

2 been marked as Ameren Exhibit 15.0, supplemental

3 direct testimony of Ronald D. Stafford accompanying

4 exhibits Ameren Exhibits 15.1 through 15.5.

5        Did you prepare or direct the preparation

6 of this supplemental direct testimony in the

7 exhibits?

8        A.  Yes, I did.

9        Q.  Next Mr. Stafford, I have what has been

10 marked Ameren Exhibit 17.0 Revised, the revised

11 rebuttal testimony of Ronald D. Stafford

12 accompanying exhibits Ameren Exhibits 17.1 through

13 17.7, 17.8 Revised and 17.9 through 17.10.

14        Did you prepare or direct the preparation

15 of this rebuttal testimony in exhibits?

16        A.  Yes, I did.

17        Q.  Next I have what is marked as Ameren

18 Exhibit 31.0, surrebuttal testimony of Ronald D.

19 Stafford accompanying exhibits Ameren Exhibits 31.1

20 through 31.5, Ameren Exhibits 31.6 in both

21 confidential and public versions, Ameren Exhibit

22 31.7 through 31.10 and Ameren's post surrebuttal

23 Exhibit 37.11 also in confidential and public

24 versions.
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1        Did you prepare or direct the preparation

2 of this surrebuttal testimony in exhibits?

3        A.  Yes, I did.  As a matter of

4 clarification, the last exhibit you mentioned was

5 37.11.

6        Q.  Correct, 37.11.

7        A.  Should that be 31?

8        Q.  31.11.

9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  I apologize.

11        Mr. Stafford, if I were to ask you the

12 questions contained in your direct, supplemental

13 direct, rebuttal and surrebuttal testimony today,

14 would your answers be the same?

15        A.  Yes, they would.

16        Q.  And is the information contained in

17 your direct, supplemental direct, rebuttal, and

18 surrebuttal testimony in exhibits true and correct

19 to the best of your knowledge?

20        A.  Yes, it is.

21           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, at this

22 time we would move for the admission of

23 Mr. Stafford's previously identified testimony in

24 exhibits and tender the witness for
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1 cross-examination.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Are there any objections

3 or clarifications with regard to those evidentiary

4 items that have been just offered?

5        Let the record show there are not.  Those

6 exhibits are admitted as filed on e-Docket.  2.0

7 Revised was filed June 5.  All dates are 2013.  2.1

8 through 2.6 was filed January 25th.  The 15.0

9 series was filed May 7th.  The 17.0 Revised was

10 July 22.  The 17.1 through 17.7 and 17.9 through

11 17.10 were filed July 10th.  17.8 Revised was July

12 22nd.  31.0, 31.1 through 31.5, 31.7 through 31.10

13 were filed August 15th as was 31.6, public and

14 proprietary versions, and 31.11 was filed August

15 26th.

16        Did I miss any or get any of them wrong?

17           MR. STURTEVANT:  No, I believe that's

18 all correct, your Honor.

19           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Those are the

20 exhibits sponsored by this witness and are admitted

21 into the record, the evidentiary record as filed on

22 e-Docket on the dates noted.

23

24
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1              (Ameren Exhibits 2.0R, 2.1

2              through 2.6, 15.0, 15.1 through

3              15.5, 17.0R, 17.1 through 17.7,

4              17.8R, 17.9, 17.10, 31.0, 31.1

5              through 31.5, 31.6, 31.7 through

6              31.10 and 31.11 admitted.)

7           JUDGE JONES:  It appears that there are

8 three parties with questions for this witness.  The

9 first one on the list is the People, but I don't

10 know if that means they are going next.

11        Who would like to lead off with regard to

12 the cross-examination of Mr. Stafford?

13           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may the people

14 go first, please?

15           JUDGE JONES:  You may.

16           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you, your Honor.

17                CROSS-EXAMINATION

18 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

19        Q.  Mr. Stafford, good afternoon.

20        A.  Good afternoon.

21        Q.  My name is Sameer Doshi.  I work for

22 the Attorney General's office.  I'm going to ask

23 you first some questions about the software

24 adjustment proposed by staff and the people.  Then
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1 I will have a very quick question about a data

2 request response that you drafted, and then

3 finally, finally I will ask you some questions

4 about the ADIT Metro East adjustment proposed by

5 staff and the people.

6        So I would like to begin on the software

7 issue.  Please turn to your surrebuttal testimony,

8 Exhibit 31.0, page 13, if you don't mind, on line

9 257.  On page 13 you state that Ms. Pearce, of

10 staff of course, Ms. Pearce revised the adjustment

11 she proposed in direct testimony for rental

12 revenues to reflect that not all of the costs

13 associated with EAMS -- I believe that stands for

14 Enterprise Asset Management System -- and MWMS --

15 and I believe that stands for Mobile Work

16 Management System -- have been included in the test

17 year.  Her modified adjustment reflects $358,000 of

18 2014 revenue as compared to $772,000 she proposed

19 in her direct testimony.

20        Then at line 265 a little bit down the page

21 you state that in the interest of narrowing issues

22 in the case, AIC accepts her proposed adjustment.

23        So is that where the company stands on this

24 particular issue; that the company accepts Ms.
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1 Pearce's adjustment of $358,000?

2        A.  That's correct.

3        Q.  Thank you.  Do you have, by any chance,

4 the testimony or exhibits of the people in front of

5 you?

6        A.  No, I do not.

7           MR. DOSHI: Your Honor, may I approach

8 the witness to show Mr. Stafford an exhibit

9 previously filed by the people?

10           JUDGE JONES:  Yes.

11           MR. STURTEVANT:  What exhibit are we --

12           MR. DOSHI:  Sorry for the delay, your

13 Honor.

14        Q.  Mr. Stafford, do you see that the

15 downward adjustment proposed by Mr. Brosch on this

16 software issue at line 3 of AG CUB Exhibit 5.1 is

17 $451,631?

18        A.  I see that.

19        Q.  Would you agree that Mr. Brosch's

20 proposed software adjustment is significantly more

21 than Ms. Pearce's proposed adjustment of $358,000?

22        A.  I would agree the adjustment is

23 greater.  I don't view it as being significantly

24 greater.
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1        Q.  Would you agree that it is

2 approximately 25% greater?

3        A.  Subject to check, yes, I agree with

4 that.

5        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Now, please refer

6 back to your surrebuttal testimony.  On page 14 at

7 line 281 you are comparing Mr. Brosch's proposed

8 adjustment and Ms. Pearce's proposed adjustment.

9 You state that, "The two calculations are performed

10 differently.  As discussed above, while both have

11 some merit, the company has accepted Ms. Pearce's

12 adjustment to narrow issues in this case."

13        Do you see that?

14        A.  I do.

15        Q.  Your rebuttal testimony does not

16 identify any specific problems with Mr. Brosch's

17 revised adjustment, does it?

18           MR. STURTEVANT:  Sorry, are you talking

19 about surrebuttal?

20           MR. DOSHI:  Sorry, I apologize.

21        Q.  Your surrebuttal testimony does not

22 identify any specific problems with Mr. Brosch's

23 revised adjustment?

24           MR. STURTEVANT:  I will object as
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1 mischaracterizing his testimony.  I think that he

2 provides specific response to Mr. Brosch in the

3 previous Q and A.

4           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, it seems

5 Mr. Sturtevant is referring to the Q and A that

6 starts at line 266; is that right?

7           MR. STURTEVANT:  No, referring to the Q

8 and A starting at line 275 where he was asked what

9 his response to Mr. Brosch's revised approach was.

10           MR. DOSHI:  Let me, let me rephrase the

11 question then.

12        Q.  Mr. Stafford, could you explain why

13 your statement from lines 276 to 278 of your

14 surrebuttal where you state I agree with some

15 aspects of Mr. Brosch's adjustment but do not agree

16 with the entirety of his adjustment given that less

17 than 50% of the system costs are included in

18 revenue requirement in this proceeding, could you

19 explain why that, that point favors Ms. Pearce's

20 adjustment over Mr. Brosch's adjustment?

21        A.  Well, as I stated in lines 276 to 278,

22 Mr. Brosch does not directly consider that less

23 than 50% of the system costs are included in the

24 revenue requirement.  So that's of concern or
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1 criticism of Mr. Brosch's adjustment.

2        Ms. Pearce's adjustment, however, looks

3 specifically at the amortization that was recorded

4 in the test year.  She used that as a basis for her

5 adjustment.  I felt like that was a more

6 appropriate basis given that, you know, the start

7 of the amortization period triggers the beginning

8 of, normally the beginning of the recovery of

9 system costs.  Once you start amortizing system

10 costs, you have placed it in service, and you

11 should expect to start recovering revenues at that

12 point.

13        So I favored Ms. Pearce's adjustment

14 because I saw a more direct linkage between

15 amortization and her adjustment for ground

16 revenues.

17        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

18        Could you please look again at AG CUB

19 Exhibit 5.1, page 3 that I previously provided to

20 you?

21        Would you agree that the amounts on line 1,

22 3.338 million which is the, which is as Mr. Brosch

23 has indicated, the estimated revenue requirement

24 impact in the test year of the EAM and MWM system,
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1 would you agree that amount comes from your own

2 rebuttal evidence at Ameren Exhibit 17.8 Revised?

3        A.  I would agree with that.  As I

4 indicated in lines 276 to 278, that represents less

5 than 50% of the revenue requirement of the system.

6 Certainly agree with your point.

7        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

8        And referring again to AG CUB Exhibit 5.1,

9 page 3, if you look at line 2 of Mr. Brosch's

10 adjustment, we see a figure of 13.53% which

11 Mr. Brosch has indicated to be the percentage of

12 the system cost to be -- that is intended to be

13 borne by Ameren Missouri in 2015?

14        A.  I see that.

15           MR. DOSHI:  Now, your Honor, may I

16 approach the witness?

17           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

18           MR. DOSHI:  I have provided Mr. Stafford

19 with a copy of AG CUB Exhibit 5.13 which was

20 previously submitted into evidence with

21 Mr. Brosch's rebuttal testimony.  This --

22           MR. STURTEVANT:  Copy of that one as

23 well?

24           MR. DOSHI:  Sure.  This document was
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1 also the company's response to AG data request

2 18.09 and was drafted by Mr. Stafford.

3        Q.  Mr. Stafford, looking at AG CUB Exhibit

4 5.13 which was also the company's data request

5 response to AG 18.09, is there anything incorrect

6 about the 13.53% factor that you indicated in your

7 data request response on that document that has

8 caused you to file any correction or revision?

9        A.  No, I indicated with your prior

10 question that I agreed with the 13.53%.

11        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  That's all of the

12 questions that I have on the software issue.

13           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, may I approach

14 the witness again, please?

15           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

16           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.  I'd like to

17 submit into evidence what I am marking as AG Cross

18 Exhibit 5 which is a data request response to the

19 request AG 17.04.  This response was prepared by

20 Mr. Stafford.  I will distribute this to your Honor

21 as well as to my co-counsel.

22        Q.  Mr. Stafford, did you prepare this data

23 request response?

24        A.  Yes, I did.
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1        Q.  The question asked, did any employee of

2 AIC or any affiliated company review the work

3 papers of AIC's independent auditor, and the

4 response says Mr. Stafford reviewed less than ten

5 of the auditor work papers.  He did not retain a

6 copy of the work papers and does not recall the

7 subject matter.  To his knowledge Mr. Stafford is

8 the only Ameren employee that reviewed any of the

9 auditor's work papers.

10        Is that statement still correct?

11        A.  To my knowledge it is, yes.

12        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  If you don't mind, I

13 would like to move on now to the Metro East ADIT

14 issue, and this topic, as you probably know, is

15 quite complicated.  I'm not an accountant, so I may

16 ask a lot of stupid questions and/or picayune

17 questions the next few minutes.  Please, please

18 correct me if and when I state things incorrectly.

19        A.  Okay.

20        Q.  So I would like to, I would like to

21 walk through the accounting for the transfer of the

22 Metro East assets from Union Electric to CIPS in

23 2005.

24           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, at this time I
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1 would like to submit into evidence a set of data

2 request responses that were prepared by Ms. Brenda

3 J. Menke, Director of Income Tax of the company.

4        We discussed this with Ameren counsel a few

5 minutes ago, and they suggested that Mr. Stafford

6 would be able to answer questions on these data

7 request responses.

8        Should I read to you the numbers of the

9 responses?

10           JUDGE JONES:  This is a group exhibit?

11           MR. DOSHI:  That's right.

12           JUDGE JONES:  What's the group exhibit

13 number?

14           MR. DOSHI:  AG Cross Exhibit 6.

15           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I would

16 interject.  I don't have a problem with counsel for

17 AG asking Mr. Stafford questions about the DR

18 despite the fact they were sponsored by Ms. Menke.

19 However, I'm not prepared to agree right this

20 moment to all of their admission to the evidentiary

21 record without at least some further review and

22 establishment of relevance and foundation.

23           JUDGE JONES:  Do you have copies of

24 those for people?
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1           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, I will distribute those

2 now, your Honor.

3           JUDGE JONES:  While you are doing that,

4 what is the status of AG Cross Exhibit 5?

5          MR. DOSHI:  Oh, I'm sorry, your Honor.  I

6 forgot to give that to you.  Sorry.

7           JUDGE JONES:  I have it, but I don't

8 recall, has that been offered, is it going to be

9 offered?

10           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, we'd like to offer into

11 evidence AG Cross Exhibit 5 which is the response

12 to AG Request 17.04.

13           JUDGE JONES:  Any objection or

14 clarifications?

15           MR. STURTEVANT:  No objection, your

16 Honor.

17           JUDGE JONES:  Let the record show AG

18 Cross Exhibit No. 5 is admitted into the

19 evidentiary record.  You will file a copy of that

20 on e-Docket; is that correct?

21           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, your Honor.

22                  (AG Cross Exhibit 5

23                  admitted.)

24        Q.  Sorry for the delay, Mr. Stafford.
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1 Could you turn to, in the packet of data request

2 responses that I just handed to you, could you turn

3 to MHE 3.02 attached?

4        A.  I have that.

5        Q.  Now, is it correct to say that just

6 prior to the transfer of the Metro East plant from

7 Union Electric to CIPS, Union Electric had

8 $2,683,687 of ADIT allocated to its account 282 in

9 relation to the Metro East plant?

10        A.  Yes, I agree with that.

11        Q.  Okay.  And is it correct to say

12 immediately following the sale Union Electric had

13 that same amount, 2.683 et cetera million allocated

14 to its account 283 I think -- please correct me if

15 that's wrong -- allocated to its account 283

16 related to the tax gain, the deferred tax on the

17 taxable gain on that intercompany transfer?  Would

18 that be correct to say?

19        A.  I'm not absolutely sure about the

20 account 283.  I would agree with your statement,

21 but I'm not sure just from quickly looking at the

22 entry for the first time 283 is the correct

23 account.  But that seems like it could be the

24 correct account.
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1        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  Okay.

2        Now, please -- now, referring again to the

3 attachment to MHE 3.02, if you look at the top, the

4 chart at the top, the Book column, the column

5 labeled Book, it seems that CIPS was acquiring four

6 categories or four asset items, and correct me if

7 this characterization is wrong, but one asset item

8 was the plant worth $17,579,526, then there was

9 another asset labeled Other Asset worth $3,123,317,

10 then there were two regulatory assets worth

11 $686,690 and another asset worth $170,800.

12        So four assets acquired by CIPS; is that

13 correct?

14        A.  That's correct.

15        Q.  Now, here is something I'm not clear on

16 because I'm not an accountant.

17        The last three assets that I listed, I

18 believe those were not part of Union Electric's

19 rate base just before the transfer; is that

20 correct?

21        A.  I don't know with absolute certainty

22 they were not included in the rate base.  Just

23 looking at the descriptions I would expect that

24 they were not included in the rate base.
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1        Q.  Could you turn to data request response

2 MHE 10.02 which is in the packet that I gave you?

3        A.  I have that.

4        Q.  Based on that chart it looks like only

5 the plant with book value 17,579,526 was included

6 in rate base just before the transfer; is that

7 correct?

8        A.  Yes, that's what that data request

9 response indicates.

10        Q.  And not those other three assets that I

11 mentioned?

12        A.  Correct.

13        Q.  Could you explain for us what those

14 other three assets were back on the attachment of

15 MHE 3.02?

16        A.  Well, the category of other assets

17 could be any number of assets.  It is -- you would

18 have to look at the balance sheet account.  This

19 doesn't specify balance sheet account, so I'm not

20 sure what those assets were.  You know, it could

21 have been customer accounts receivable, possibly

22 cash.  It is uncertain from looking at the

23 description what those assets were.

24        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  So a number of
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1 things that do not go into a rate base?

2        A.  Correct.

3        Q.  Now, if you could turn back to the data

4 request response MHE 10.02, it looks like,

5 according to the response prepared by the company,

6 immediately after the transaction the deferred tax

7 relating to the taxable gain that you mentioned

8 before early in our questions is not being deducted

9 from Union Electric's rate base after the transfer.

10 So you said it goes into, you thought account 283

11 subject to check as you said, but according to the

12 data request response MHE 10.02, that deferred tax

13 is not being deducted from Union Electric's rate

14 base.  Why is that?

15        A.  Well, the assets have been transferred

16 from Union Electric to CIPS.  So at that point of

17 transfer the utility plant assets associated with

18 the accumulated deferred income taxes are no longer

19 under these books.

20        So the basic premise for rate base

21 deduction for accumulated deferred taxes is that

22 their, their cash flow benefit to the utility

23 related to the underlying assets, those assets have

24 been transferred.  They are no longer on Union's
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1 books, so it would be inappropriate accounting,

2 rate making in my opinion to exclude a deferred tax

3 item from rate base when a corresponding asset is

4 not included.

5        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.  So UE had a deferred

6 tax from the taxable sale of 2.683, rather 2.684

7 million rounding off.

8        Would that amount still be in Union

9 Electric's or maybe I should say Ameren Missouri's

10 accounts today?

11           MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm going to object.  I

12 think that mischaracterized his question.  I don't

13 think the deferred tax gain was characterized by

14 Mr. Stafford as from a taxable sale.

15           MR. DOSHI:  I will rephrase the

16 question.

17        Q.  The deferred tax relating to the

18 taxable gain on transfer of the plant appeared in

19 Union Electric's account 283 you think probably

20 immediately after the sale, but it is not deducted

21 from rate base.

22        My question is is does that deferred tax

23 still appear in Union Electric's accounts today?

24        A.  Well, I will start off by saying a
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1 deferred tax gain that was recorded by UE at the

2 time of transfer would have offset accumulated

3 deferred tax balance that had previously been

4 deducted from rate base for UE.

5        So those have all offset each other in the

6 deferred tax accounts.  So the accumulated deferred

7 tax balance would effectively have been zero after

8 the transfer which is what we are showing here on

9 MHE 10.02 as zero balance after the transfer.

10 Whether it would be deferred tax gain is still

11 being amortized.  I think it is, but I'm not

12 absolutely certain of that.  I think it was

13 amortized over a set period of time on UE's books

14 after the transfer.  I don't recall what that time

15 period was.

16        Q.  Could you refer to again in this packet

17 of data request responses I gave you MHE 3.04?

18 There is a statement in the response that says the

19 net impact on total deferred taxes on the books of

20 UE was zero.  Do you see that?

21        A.  Yes.

22        Q.  So would it be fair to say that the

23 ADIT related to Metro East from immediately before

24 the transfer of approximately 2.684 million was
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1 zeroed out, but simultaneously a new deferred tax

2 related to the taxable gain on transfer of 2.684

3 million appeared in account 283 probably of Union

4 Electric?

5        A.  I'm afraid I don't understand your

6 question.  Could you either repeat or clarify?

7        Q.  Sure.  The statement MHE 3.04 response

8 says the net impact on total deferred taxes in

9 books of UE was zero.

10        So would it be fair to say that

11 simultaneously the previous ADIT related to Metro

12 East of 2.684 million got zeroed out, but then a

13 new deferred tax in the same amount appeared in the

14 books?

15        Would it be fair to characterize it that

16 way?

17        A.  Are you referring to UE's books?

18        Q.  Yes.

19        A.  UE's books, the accumulated deferred

20 tax at the time of transfer would have remained on

21 UE books and would have been offset by a deferred

22 tax gain.  I wasn't absolutely certain whether it

23 was account 283, but it would have been included in

24 the accumulated deferred tax accounts.
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1        Does that answer your question?

2        Q.  I think so.  I would like to read back

3 the response MHE 3.04.  It says, the accumulated

4 deferred income taxes recorded on the books of UE

5 were reversed at the time of transfer of the assets

6 from UE to Ameren CIPS.  At the same time the

7 deferred tax liability related to the deferred

8 intercompany tax gain on the transfer was set up on

9 the books of UE.  The net impact on total deferred

10 taxes on the books of UE was zero.

11        So would it be fair to say that the

12 previous ADIT related to Metro East was -- here in

13 the data request response it says reversed.

14        Would it be fair to describe that as zeroed

15 out?

16        A.  No, I agree with this.  You know, the

17 reference to being reversed, I don't disagree with

18 that.

19        Q.  Can you explain what reversed means in

20 that data request response?

21        A.  Well, reversed means in this data

22 request response is that at the time of the

23 transfer the balances of all assets and liabilities

24 related to Metro East were reversed on the books of
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1 UE because the assets are being transferred to

2 CIPS.  So the balances, whether they were asset or

3 liability balances, were reversed at that time.

4        So I think, you know, the way I

5 characterized it is a little different than what is

6 stated here.  I guess the bottom line is that, you

7 know, the deferred tax balance was reversed as

8 indicated in this response at the time of the

9 transfer, and deferred tax gain was established.

10        Q.  Now, I believe you indicated in

11 testimony -- I know you are not a tax lawyer, but I

12 believe you indicated in testimony that under IRS

13 rules, because the transfer of the asset was from

14 one corporate affiliate to another within a

15 consolidated entity, UE does not actually owe

16 capital gains tax to the IRS for the transfer; is

17 that correct?

18        A.  I don't --

19           MR. STURTEVANT:  Is there a specific

20 part of his testimony that you are referring to?

21           MR. DOSHI:  Sure.  Let me -- I

22 apologize.  I should refer to a specific part of

23 his testimony.

24        I will withdraw the question for the moment



343

1 until I maybe find it in a couple moments.  But let

2 me move onto another question.

3        Q.  Was the deferred tax liability related

4 to the intercompany transfer ever deducted from

5 Union Electric's rate base in Missouri Public

6 Service Commission rate cases since the transfer?

7        A.  Not to my knowledge.

8        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

9        Prior to the transfer, the Metro East plant

10 was entirely within the State of Illinois; is that

11 correct?

12        A.  Yes.

13        Q.  And was Union Electric subject to

14 Illinois Commerce Commission jurisdiction for its

15 service to Illinois customers via the Metro East

16 plant prior to the transfer?

17          MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going to

18 enter an objection on the grounds it is asking the

19 witness for a legal conclusion to the extent of the

20 Commission's jurisdiction.

21           JUDGE JONES:  Response?

22           MR. DOSHI:  I will withdraw the

23 question.

24        Q.  Mr. Stafford, please refer to --
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1 Mr. Stafford, please refer to MHE 12.02, another

2 data request response included in the, in the

3 packet that I provided as AG Cross Exhibit 6.  If

4 you look at the attachment, it appears that the

5 step-up basis items in accounts 190-365 and 190-366

6 of CIPS, now of course part of Ameren Illinois,

7 related to the Metro East transfer, it appears that

8 these balances are declining over time; is that

9 right?

10        A.  That's correct.

11        Q.  Can you explain why they are declining

12 over time?

13        A.  The step-up basis deferred tax asset is

14 being amortized over the remaining life of the

15 underlying assets that were transferred, estimated

16 remaining life.  So each year the balance declines

17 via amortization.

18        Q.  Okay.  It appears, however, that in

19 2006 the balance in 190-365 and 190-366 increased.

20        Do you know why that was?

21        A.  No, I observed that previously and then

22 in 2007 that very large negative looked to me like

23 there was just some adjustments made in 2006 and

24 2007 with regard to correcting either the balances
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1 or the amortizations or both.

2        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

3        I would like to refer you to page 16 of

4 your surrebuttal testimony.  Please take a look at

5 lines 333 and 334.  The question there is are

6 ratepayers harmed by the recognition of the step-up

7 basis entry.  The answer is no, the increase in

8 rate base is temporary.

9        Can you explain -- first can you explain

10 what you mean by temporary?

11        A.  What I mean by temporary is that once

12 the transfer occurred, accumulated deferred taxes

13 would have begun anew for the transferred assets,

14 and during the -- as I indicated in my surrebuttal

15 testimony, the tax lives for the assets that were

16 transferred are anywhere from three to 20 years for

17 the tax life.  So that means that you are

18 accumulating deferred tax for a three to

19 twenty-year period for those assets, and that bills

20 accumulated deferred taxes leads to a rate base

21 deduction.

22        In looking at the transferred assets as we

23 have discussed, there is roughly a $17 million book

24 basis where assets were transferred over from three
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1 to 20-year period.  Depending on the type of

2 assets, assets will be fully tax depreciated which

3 means the company would accumulate 17 million of

4 tax timing differences.  That multiplied by a

5 deferred tax rate, our tax rate at roughly 40%, you

6 would accumulate deferred taxes at its peak of well

7 over, you know, maybe roughly, let's see, 17

8 million times 40% would be 8, 9 million of

9 accumulated deferred taxes.  So accumulate that

10 deferred tax balance over the taxable life of those

11 assets.  I am estimating, you know, within the test

12 year we would be close to the midpoint of that

13 peak, and so I'd estimate we would have roughly 4

14 million of accumulated deferred taxes in rate base,

15 rate base deduction in the 2014 test year, and that

16 is contra to Mr. Effron's adjustment of 1.3

17 million.

18        So while my number is based on estimates,

19 you know, my estimate is that the rate base

20 deduction with a transfer is 4 million compared to

21 1.3 million if the assets were still on UE's books

22 and still being used for Illinois jurisdictional

23 rate base.

24        So it is temporary.  It turns around, and I
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1 am saying it is more than turned around.  Now the

2 rate base deduction is much greater with the

3 transfer than it would have been absent the

4 transfer.

5        Q.  Thank you.  You indicated before that

6 you thought an asset of $17 million depreciated at

7 a 40% tax rate would lead to 8 or $9 million of

8 accumulated deferred income tax; is that right?

9        A.  I didn't mention 3% specifically.  The

10 tax depreciation rates are on a, I think a double

11 decline balance scale.  So they are high in the

12 earlier years and decline over time, over the --

13 say you have a 15 year asset.  I think that was the

14 illustration that I used.  The first year tax rate

15 is 3.75% year one, and then year two tax

16 depreciation rate is 7.219%.

17        So, you know, if you were under book rates,

18 if you had the same 15-year book life you would

19 just use a straight line schedule.  If you would

20 take 100% depreciation divided by 15 years, you

21 would have the same rate every year.  But tax

22 rates, you know, go up in year two, then they

23 decline over time, and so that's what leads to the

24 tax timing differences of tax versus book
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1 depreciation and accumulated deferred tax benefit.

2 I'm not sure if I fully answered your question.

3        Q.  Thank you.  My question was just

4 getting at the idea that 17 million times 40% is

5 6.8 million?

6        A.  Seventeen million, 17 million would be

7 the accumulated deferred tax at its peak.  You

8 would fully tax depreciate those assets over three

9 to 20 years.  So at the peak you would have 17

10 million of tax depreciation, then you would

11 multiply that 17 million times the statutory state

12 and federal tax rates.  I am just using 40% for

13 round numbers, and that would be the accumulated

14 deferred tax amount that would be deducted from

15 rate base at its peak.

16        Q.  Okay.  Thank you.

17        You stated at lines -- on page 18 at lines

18 379 until lines 382, you state that with tax

19 depreciation starting over in 2005 for the

20 transferred assets it is likely that the added

21 deduction for the transferred assets would be

22 greater under AIC's proposal to maintain the

23 step-up offset entry than if the transfer had not

24 taken place.
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1        Let me ask you a couple questions.

2        First, how can we measure as of today the

3 amount of ADIT or accumulated deferred income tax,

4 related to the Metro East plant on AIC's books?

5        Would it be the amounts in account 190-365

6 and 190-366 netted against amounts in accounts, in

7 account 282?

8           MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm going to object as

9 asked and answered.  I think the witness just

10 explained how he went about measuring the amounts

11 of ADIT related to accumulated related to the

12 transaction.

13           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, the witness, he

14 believes, explained how to calculate the amount of

15 deferred income tax any given year based on

16 statutorily mandated tax rates.

17        My question was if we want to look at the

18 balance sheet of accounts today and get a snapshot

19 what is the ADIT balance relating to the Metro East

20 plant, how can we do that?

21        Q.  For example, Mr. Stafford, if you could

22 turn to, if you can turn to AG Data Request

23 Response AG 2.11 Attachment which was also part of

24 the packet that I submitted as AG Cross Exhibit 6.
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1        If we look at that attachment, toward the

2 top of the page we see the two items for a tax

3 depreciation step-up basis metro in account 190,

4 although in account 228 at the bottom of the page,

5 the portion of that which is attributable to Metro

6 East plant is not broken out.

7        Is there a way to figure out as of today

8 what is the ADIT related to the Metro East plant on

9 Ameren Illinois' books?

10        A.  It may be possible to do that but might

11 require some estimation, and if I understand you

12 correctly, you are asking about after the transfer

13 Metro East assets --

14        Q.  That's right.

15        A.  -- correct?  You would have to

16 determine the transferred assets by tax group, what

17 tax group they fell into.  Are they three year,

18 seven year, 15 or 20 year, and then you would have

19 to run your tax depreciation rates.

20        Q.  Sure.  So returning to the quote I

21 mentioned on page 18, line 379 of your surrebuttal,

22 it says it is likely that the ADIT deduction for

23 the transferred assets would be greater under AIC's

24 proposal to maintain the step-up offset entry than



351

1 if the transfer had not taken place.

2        So if the transfer had not taken place,

3 then ADIT on Union Electric's books would have been

4 2.684 million in 2005, and it sounds like from what

5 you were saying it would be declining because most

6 of the assets within the Metro East plant were

7 getting old, getting beyond the 20-year IRS

8 accelerated depreciation schedule; is that right?

9        A.  That is an estimate on my part, yes.

10        Q.  Sure.

11        A.  The transferred assets on UE's books

12 were not segregated from the Missouri gas assets,

13 so we couldn't define those exactly.  We were asked

14 data request from staff on that, and we couldn't,

15 we couldn't define that because the assets on UE's

16 books were not segregated.  But I used an

17 illustration in testimony indicating that, you

18 know, if you had an asset installed in 2000, it

19 would already have been partially tax depreciated.

20        I would expect that many of the assets that

21 were transferred had various vintages.  Some maybe

22 were installed in 2004 but some maybe were

23 installed in 1994, 1984.  Some of them, therefore,

24 would likely have been fully tax depreciated, but
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1 that's merely an estimate on my part.

2        Q.  So -- thank you.

3        So the ADIT balance on Union Electric's

4 books would probably have been declining from 2.684

5 million from 2005 onward whereas the ADIT balance

6 on now that the asset, the plant is in reality, not

7 counterfactually but in reality on Ameren Illinois'

8 books started at zero and has been increasing over

9 time since 2005; is that right?

10        A.  That is correct, yeah.  If absent the

11 transfer I don't know if UE's balance would have

12 literally declined in 2006, 2007.

13        Q.  Sure.

14        A.  But over time it would have.  It may

15 have already hit its peak and would have been

16 declining.  You would have to look at the

17 individual vintage group of assets, but certainly

18 it has either reached its peak, close to its peak

19 or in the declining mode.

20        Q.  Okay.

21        A.  Then on CIPS books it would have

22 started at zero and would have been accelerating.

23        Q.  So on Union Electric's books the ADIT

24 balance would have started at 2.684 million and
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1 probably started to decline over time?

2           MR. DOSHI:  Let the record show I'm

3 making a downward hand gesture.

4        Q.  And on -- and in reality on CIPS books

5 the ADIT balance started at zero and is increasing

6 over time.  I'm making an upward hand gesture.

7        So can you estimate when the counterfactual

8 parallel universe ADIT balance on Union Electric's

9 books declining would be equal with the actual ADIT

10 balance on CIPS books increasing?

11        A.  I could make an estimate, but it is

12 just an estimate.  I would say within three to five

13 years after the transfer it would have been in

14 equilibrium.  I was estimating after nine years 4

15 million of that ADIT earlier in our discussion, and

16 the balance started at 2.6 and estimating it is on

17 a declining cycle I would expect maybe five years

18 is a good estimate as to when you would hit

19 equilibrium and the CIPS' ADIT would have been

20 greater than what it would have been with UE.

21        Q.  So under the company's proposed

22 treatment, it would take three to five years before

23 ratepayers could get the same benefit from the

24 accumulated deferred income tax of the Metro East



354

1 plant as they would have had if Union Electric kept

2 it under, based on your estimate?

3           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going

4 to object.  I think, again, the question is either

5 vague or it is mischaracterizing his testimony.

6 We are talking about ratepayers in different

7 jurisdictions here, so I'm not sure the question

8 makes any sense.

9           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, the Metro East

10 plant was, I believe as Mr. Stafford said, entirely

11 within Illinois, and although Mr. Stafford didn't

12 answer the question about whether it was in the ICC

13 jurisdiction, I believe it was.

14           JUDGE JONES:  Could I have the question

15 read back?

16                  (The reporter read the question.)

17           JUDGE JONES:  Part of the objection went

18 to who is ratepayers.

19        Do you have any response to that piece of

20 the objection, that the question is vague as to who

21 the ratepayers the question is asking about?

22           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, I believe it is

23 Illinois ratepayers in either the counterfactual

24 parallel universe where Union Electric kept the
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1 plant or in reality where CIPS had the plant.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  If you want to

3 reask the question to specifically asking about

4 Illinois ratepayers, we will go from there as to

5 whether there is still an objection or what will

6 happen to the objection.

7           MR. STURTEVANT:  Can I also, your Honor,

8 just inquire while we are at a small break here how

9 much additional cross counsel has for my witness

10 because I believe he is somewhat beyond his initial

11 estimate.

12           MR. DOSHI:  Your Honor, I will ask two

13 more questions after this.

14           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Do you want to

15 proceed with your question and we will go from

16 there.

17        Q.  (By Mr. Doshi) Mr. Stafford, based on

18 your estimate would it be fair to say that Illinois

19 ratepayers with have to wait three to five years

20 after the asset transfer in 2005 to attain the same

21 benefit of the ADIT deduction from rate base as

22 they would have been getting had Union Electric

23 kept the plant?

24        A.  In isolation that would be correct.  It
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1 is noted in the gas transfer order, however, a

2 couple things.  One is that stay-out period during

3 the mandatory transition from the electric side.

4 So there was a mandatory stay-out provision.  There

5 is no rate case filed immediately after the

6 transfer.

7        Secondly, the Commission made an express

8 finding in the gas transfer order that there was no

9 adverse rate impacts to customers.

10        So while in isolation this is one piece of

11 the transfer, there were other considerations that

12 were made in that transfer, and the Commission did

13 expressly find that there is no adverse rate

14 impacts to customers.

15        And then I would also note that the

16 approval of the accounting entries in that docket,

17 staff made the express finding that the deferred

18 tax gain was omitted originally from the electric

19 transfer, and it was specifically noted that it was

20 part of the approved accounting treatments.

21        So transfer order for gas in summary, I

22 recognized there was no adverse rate impacts

23 expressly found, that the per tax gain was part of

24 the approved accounting entries, and there was a
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1 stay-out period, a short stay-out period built into

2 the approval process.

3           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.  Your Honor, may

4 I ask two more questions?

5           JUDGE JONES:  Go ahead.

6           MR. DOSHI:  Thank you.

7        Q.  Mr. Stafford, based on your training

8 and experience as an accountant, can you explain

9 what your understanding of the concept of time

10 value of money is?

11        A.  Time value of money would be

12 recognition that a dollar today is worth more than

13 it will be, you know, a year from now or two years

14 from now due to the erosion from inflation.

15        So, you know, when you recognize time value

16 of money you are considering the time period you

17 are looking at and whether the same value is worth,

18 the same dollar amount is worth the same today as

19 it would be in some future period.

20        Q.  Thank you.  Then my final question, I

21 apologize for going longer than I promised.  On

22 page 17 of your surrebuttal, at line 347 it says

23 their claim, their referring to staff and the

24 people, is based on recognition of rate base values
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1 at the time of the transfer in 2005.

2        Is it your belief that the proposed

3 adjustment of the people and the AG is to, is to

4 remove the amounts that were recorded to CIPS

5 account 190 for the step-up basis adjustment in

6 2005?

7        A.  Could you repeat the question?

8        Q.  Sure.  Is it your belief that the

9 proposed ADIT adjustment on this issue by the staff

10 and the people is to remove the amounts that were

11 originally recorded to account 190 of CIPS to

12 effectuate the step-up basis, step-up basis

13 adjustment in 2005?

14        A.  No, the proposal by Mr. Effron -- I

15 believe Ms. Everson has the same proposal -- is to

16 remove the test year amount of step-up basis

17 account 190, not an amount from a prior period.  As

18 we talked, discussed earlier that amount is being

19 amortized and is declining over time.  So it is

20 lower in 2014, for example, than it was in 2006,

21 2009, et cetera, and as I indicated previously by

22 the test year, you know, the ADIT accumulation for

23 CIPS transferred assets is far greater than any

24 value of the step-up basis.
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1        So when you are measuring apples to apples,

2 it is clear that the ratepayers are benefiting from

3 the company's accounting recognition and rate

4 making recognition in the test year.

5           MR. DOSHI: Thank you, Mr. Stafford.

6 That's all, and I appreciate your patience with all

7 my questions.

8           JUDGE JONES:  There are other parties

9 conducting cross, but first the AG Cross 6, which

10 DR's are included in that?

11           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, your Honor.  The set of

12 DR's in the AG Cross Exhibit 6 is as follows:  MHE

13 3.02 and attachment; MHE 3.04; MHE 5.01 and MHE

14 5.02; MHE 5.04; MHE 5.05; MHE 10.02; MHE 12.02 and

15 finally AG 2.11 and attachment.  I forgot to

16 mention that MHE 12.02 had an attachment.

17           JUDGE JONES:  Thank you.  All right.

18 Now, are you offering that exhibit into the record?

19           MR. DOSHI:  Yes, your Honor.

20           JUDGE JONES:  I believe counsel for

21 Ameren Illinois indicated earlier that any ruling,

22 to wait until there had been opportunity to review

23 those responses.  Is that still, is that still the

24 case?
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1           MR. STURTEVANT:  It is, your Honor.  We

2 have actually had an opportunity to review them

3 during the course of cross and have no objection to

4 their admittance.

5          JUDGE JONES:  You have no objection did

6 you say?

7           MR. STURTEVANT:  No objection, your

8 Honor.

9          JUDGE JONES:  Does anyone else have any

10 objection in response to the admission of those

11 items comprising AG Cross No. 6?

12        Let the record show they do not.

13        At this time let the record show that AG

14 Cross Exhibit No. 6 admitted into the evidentiary

15 record.  It is comprised of the DR responses that

16 counsel just identified.

17                  (AG Cross Exhibit 6

18                   admitted.)

19           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Off the record

20 regarding the status of the cross-examination of

21 Mr. Stafford.

22                  (Discussion off the record.)

23        JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on the

24 record.  I obtained some revised cross estimates.
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1 In any event I think the preference of the parties

2 is to proceed with the rest of the cross for

3 Mr. Stafford if possible, and it is my

4 understanding that the Commission staff has

5 questions for the witness.

6        Mr. Robertson, is there anything that you

7 need to do today with regard to this case before,

8 before we turn it over to staff?

9           MR. ROBERTSON:  No.  Thank you, your

10 Honor.

11           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  All right.  Staff

12 ready to cross?

13           MR. SAGONE:  Yes.  Thank you, your

14 Honor.

15           JUDGE JONES:  All right, Mr. Sagone.

16           MR. SAGONE:  Just as a preliminary

17 matter I have got a group cross exhibit that

18 consists of a number of responses, data request

19 responses from the company that I discussed with

20 company counsel beforehand, and my understanding is

21 that they would have no objection subject to an

22 opportunity to redirect on the subject matter in

23 these data responses.

24           MR. TOMC:  This is Matt Tomc for the
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1 company.  That's correct.  I believe in our

2 communications we did communicate concerning,

3 concerning certain objections.  Just wanted to make

4 sure that understanding was still clear.

5           MR. SAGONE:  Yes, that's correct.  So

6 this will be ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 3.  It

7 consists of responses to staff data requests RMP

8 13.01 through 13.02, RMP 14.05 through 14.06, and

9 14.09 through 14.15.  And may I approach?

10           JUDGE JONES:  You may.

11           UNIDENTIFIED:  Did we lose audio?

12           JUDGE JONES:  Are you there, Ms.

13 Ericson?

14           MS. ERICSON:  Yes, I can.  I did lose

15 visual, but I can hear you.

16           MR. SAGONE:  We can continue if it is

17 just video up in Chicago.

18           JUDGE JONES:  That would be my --

19              (Discussion off the record.)

20           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on the

21 record.  All right.  We will go ahead with the

22 cross by Mr. Sagone of the witness.

23           MR. SAGONE:  We would move to have ICC

24 Cross, Staff Cross Exhibit 3 entered into the
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1 record.

2           JUDGE JONES:  Any objection,

3 clarification with regard to the motion to admit

4 Staff Cross Exhibit No. 3?

5           MR. TOMC:  No, your Honor.

6           JUDGE JONES:  I think we are -- let the

7 record show there are no objections.  Staff Cross

8 Exhibit No. 3 is admitted.

9                  (Staff Cross Exhibit 3

10                  admitted.)

11           MR. SAGONE:  Thank you, your Honor.

12                  CROSS-EXAMINATION

13 QUESTIONS BY MR. SAGONE:

14        Q.  Good afternoon, Mr. Stafford.  My name

15 is John Sagone.  I represent the staff witnesses of

16 the Illinois Commerce Commission.

17        A.  Good afternoon.

18        Q.  And I will just have a few questions

19 for you today.

20        If I can refer you to your surrebuttal

21 testimony, page 24, lines 496 to 500.  You state

22 there Ms. Phipps makes the allegation that the

23 company has admitted to reducing retained earnings

24 associated with purchase or push-down accounting by
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1 dividends.  As a matter of financial accounting,

2 payment of dividends has the effect of reducing

3 retained earnings which is a component part of

4 shareholders' equity on the balance sheet.

5        Do you see that there?

6        A.  Yes.

7        Q.  Now, you would agree that purchase

8 accounting involved restating the value of Ameren

9 IP's assets and liabilities to fair value when

10 Ameren Corporation acquired Illinois Power Company,

11 correct?

12        A.  Yes.

13        Q.  If I could direct you staying with your

14 surrebuttal testimony to page 27, lines 563 to 567.

15 You state there as Ms. Phipps has once again raised

16 the issue of the proper accounting adjustments

17 necessary to remove the effects of purchase

18 accounting, I have reviewed the calculation again

19 to make sure that the calculation presented by the

20 company comports with accounting guidance

21 applicable to the company.  Do you see that?

22        A.  I do.

23        Q.  Now, this reference that you make here

24 is to the calculation provided in response to RMP
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1 5.04R Attached or ICC Exhibit 14.0 Attachment B

2 that you discuss on page 26 of your surrebuttal

3 testimony; is that correct?

4        A.  Correct.

5        Q.  And it is correct that AIC's response

6 to staff data request RMP 5.04R which is contained

7 in RMP 5.04R Attached provides the amount of

8 purchase accounting earnings that the company

9 alleges were eliminated each year; is that correct?

10        A.  The calculation reflects the amount of

11 retained earnings recorded on AIC's financials for

12 purchase accounting.  From an accounting standpoint

13 the purchase accounting is segregated on AIC's

14 books for non-purchase accounting, and the rate

15 making retained earnings adjustment is to directly

16 assign or allocate dividends to the retained

17 earnings to reflect the portion of dividend

18 payments that come out of retainer for both

19 purchase accounting and non-purchase accounting.

20 So it becomes a rate making adjustment for the

21 dividend portion of that calculation.

22        Q.  Okay.  So that's a yes; is that

23 correct?

24        A.  Pardon?
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1        Q.  That's a yes, if I could boil that

2 down?

3        A.  It is yes, with the provision of what I

4 stated in my response.

5        Q.  Now, were you following accounting

6 guidance or rules when you determined dividends

7 come from one source of net income versus another?

8        A.  I was following accounting guidance to

9 subtract dividends from retained earnings to

10 determine the amount of retained earnings actually

11 retained by the company.  To determine the amount

12 of dividends segregated between purchase accounting

13 and non-purchase accounting, that was a rate making

14 adjustment.

15        Q.  What would, what would the company's

16 balance of common equity have been on December 31,

17 2012, if the company had not recorded any net

18 income related purchase accounting?

19           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going

20 to object.  This is calling for speculation and

21 assuming something that didn't happen.

22           MR. SAGONE:  Well, I can ask as a

23 hypothetical, but I'm not sure what the assumption

24 of something that didn't happen is referring to.
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1 Your Honor, we're not asking what the balance would

2 have been -- well --

3           JUDGE JONES:  Are you going to proceed,

4 then, as a hypothetical?  Is that what you are

5 saying?

6           MR. SAGONE:  I can proceed as a

7 hypothetical.

8           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  We will start

9 with that, see what goes.

10        Q.  So Mr. Stafford, speaking

11 hypothetically what would AIC's balance of common

12 equity have been on December 31, 2012, if the

13 company had not recorded any net income related

14 purchase accounting?

15          MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I am going

16 to object to the hypothetical I think on the same

17 grounds in that he is asking if hypothetically AIC

18 had not recorded any net income related purchase

19 accounting, you know, when, in fact, that it had.

20 I don't know you can reasonably construct a

21 hypothetical based on that.

22          JUDGE JONES:  I will allow the question.

23 I mean, in some regards it is like a lot of other

24 adjustments that we see.  It is not so much



368

1 necessarily what the utility did but maybe perhaps

2 what they could have done differently or what would

3 have done under other ways of accounting or other

4 ways of doing things.  So I don't know how this,

5 how that would make this really too much, too much

6 different from a lot of proposed adjustments.  We

7 see whatever the merits or lack of merits might be.

8        If the witness understands the question and

9 is able to formulate an answer to it, then I think

10 it will be an appropriate question to answer.

11        A.  Well, on the basis of a hypothetical I

12 don't know what the common equity balance in year

13 end 2012 is for Ameren Illinois.

14        I did indicate in my testimony that the

15 calculation of the rate making retained earnings

16 adjustment was negative 2,834,790.  So based upon

17 that testimony, my best estimate of what common

18 equity would have been year end 2012 of no purchase

19 accounting would have been recorded would be that

20 the common equity balance would be greater by

21 2,834,790.

22        Q.  That's -- and in that answer you are

23 just referring to 2012; is that correct?

24        A.  Repeat that.
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1        Q.  You are just referring to 2012,

2 correct?

3        A.  The common equity accumulated balance

4 over time, I was referring to the year end 2012 for

5 that.

6        Q.  Could you take that back further?

7        A.  I could by, through a series of looking

8 at the rate making retained earnings adjustments

9 and either Ms. Phipps' exhibits or mine.  The

10 balance has been negative.  It is based upon the

11 estimate of the rate, it is based upon the rate

12 making returned earnings adjustment that I

13 calculated as forms the basis of my estimate with

14 the change in common equity.

15        Q.  Could you, could you tell me what the

16 balance would have been before taking out common

17 dividends?

18        A.  Well, I don't have that calculation.  I

19 probably could do that calculation, but it is not

20 an appropriate calculation because common equity

21 isn't derived from retained earnings without

22 consideration of common dividends.  As I explained

23 in testimony form 1 and form 21, ILCC, calculate

24 the retained earnings based upon an ending
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1 appropriated retained earnings balance is based

2 upon the subtraction of dividends.  So I don't

3 think it is valid to try to estimate or construct

4 that without consideration of dividends.

5        Q.  Mr. Stafford, would you agree that the

6 common equity balance would have been $105,536,599

7 if no purchase accounting had been recorded?

8           MR. STURTEVANT:  Objection, asked and

9 answered.

10        Q.  I'm sorry, that much less?

11        A.  I believe I have answered the question.

12 I don't think that the basis for the 105 million is

13 a valid basis because it does consider common

14 dividend payments.  So I wouldn't agree with the

15 105 million being an appropriate analogy for that

16 calculation of common equity.

17        Q.  Is a positive retained earnings balance

18 a necessary condition for paying a dividend?

19        A.  Could you repeat that, please?

20        Q.  Sure.  Is a positive retained earnings

21 balance a necessary condition for paying a

22 dividend?

23        A.  We have indicated in prior dockets

24 where we have addressed the same issue that
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1 retaining the company's policy is to pay dividends

2 out of positive retained earnings, but there can be

3 samples that are extreme as Ms. Phipps previously

4 identified an example where dividends are paid out

5 of a balance other than positive retained earnings,

6 but it is my understanding it would be an

7 exception.

8        Q.  Now, is there any accounting guidance

9 or rules or legal requirement which you are aware

10 that dividends can be no greater than the balance

11 of retained earnings?

12        A.  As -- I'm not aware of an accounting

13 rule that says that can be -- dividends can be

14 greater or less than retained earnings per se.

15        You know, as I just indicated there, the

16 norm is for dividends to be paid out of positive

17 retained earnings.  I'm not aware of any situation

18 where Ameren Illinois since the merger has paid

19 dividends out of negative retained earnings, and it

20 is clearly, in my opinion, an exception rather than

21 the norm for any company much less, you know, a

22 utility or any other company for that matter.

23        Q.  Putting aside what the company has

24 done, you are not aware of any rule or regulation?
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1        A.  I'm not aware whether there is a rule

2 or is not.  I'm not sure.  I don't know.

3        Q.  I would like to direct you back to your

4 surrebuttal testimony, page 22, lines 463 to 465.

5 You state there in each rate proceeding since the

6 order issued in docket 04-0294 the company has

7 reversed the effects of purchase accounting

8 collapsed into ICC account 114. Do you see that?

9        A.  Yes.

10        Q.  Can you explain why the net income

11 related purchase accounting adjustments are not

12 collapsed into ICC account 114?

13        A.  114 is a balance sheet account, and the

14 impacts on net income, separate financial statement

15 and income statement impacts are retained earnings

16 part of the statement of retained earnings.

17 They're separate financial statements.

18        So when you look at collapsed and purchase

19 accounting and account 114, a balance sheet

20 account, I'm not sure from an accounting standpoint

21 there is really a way to do that where you would

22 intermingle different financial statements together

23 from a collapsing standpoint.

24        Activity within a balance sheet can have an
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1 impact on operating expenses and net income, and

2 conversely income statement activity can have an

3 effect on the balance sheet account, but by

4 definition balance sheet accounts are a separate

5 financial statement from the others.  They're

6 separate schedules in part 285 D schedules.

7 They're separate and distinct from each other.

8        So it is -- the premise is that account 114

9 is a balance sheet account, and what we have done

10 is collapse the balance sheet activity into account

11 114.

12        Q.  Now, is it your opinion that the

13 Commission followed accounting guidance or rules

14 when it ordered Ameren IP to reverse all purchase

15 accounting adjustments for rate making purposes?

16           MR. STURTEVANT:  Objection.  I think the

17 question assumes a Commission requirement that has

18 not been established.

19           MR. SAGONE:  I can rephrase.

20        Q.  In your opinion does collapsing all

21 purchase accounting adjustments into account 114

22 follow accounting guidance or rules?

23        A.  I would not say follows accounting

24 guidance.  It is a regulatory requirement.  I view
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1 it as purely a regulatory requirement for Illinois

2 regulatory purposes.  Our form 1 and SEC reporting

3 would not collapse all purchase accounting in 114.

4 It would maintain separate accounting in individual

5 balance sheet accounts, but we were required in the

6 order of 04-0294 to collapse into 114 for all

7 Illinois regulatory purposes.  We complied with

8 that order, and we routinely make that collapsing

9 adjustment in form 21 at page 13 on an annual

10 basis.

11        Q.  I would like to direct you, staying

12 with your surrebuttal, to page 28, and you provide

13 a formula there, RE equals RE beginning plus RE

14 transfer minus DIVpref minus DIVcomm.  Do you see

15 that?

16        A.  Yes.

17        Q.  Now, you reviewed -- did you review Ms.

18 Phipps' testimony in this docket?

19        A.  Yes, I did.  This was responsive to Ms.

20 Phipps' formula.

21        Q.  And do you have a copy of her rebuttal

22 testimony with you?

23        A.  Yes.

24        Q.  If I could direct you to Ms. Phipps'
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1 rebuttal testimony, page 11.

2           MR. STURTEVANT:  Did you say page 11?

3           MR. SAGONE:  Page 11.

4        A.  I have that.

5        Q.  And Ms. Phipps provides a formula there

6 as well; is that correct?

7        A.  Correct.

8        Q.  And that formula is RE 2014 equals RE

9 2004 plus NI plus PA minus DIV; is that correct?

10        A.  Correct.

11        Q.  Now, in your formula on page 28 of your

12 surrebuttal, the sum of RE beginning and RE

13 transfer equals the sum of the variables RE 2004,

14 NI and PA from Ms. Phipps' formula on page 11 of

15 her rebuttal testimony; is that correct?

16        A.  That's correct.

17        Q.  In fact, the only difference between

18 these two formulas is that Ms. Phipps separates

19 transfers to retained earnings in the two

20 components NI and PA; is that correct?

21        A.  That difference along with the fact two

22 other differences.  One is that my formula would

23 deduct dividends from preferred stock, and also the

24 starting point for my formula is the beginning of
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1 any given year.  It doesn't just automatically

2 start at 2004 and build to 2014.  And my formula is

3 directly from FERC Form 1 and comports with Form 21

4 ILCC.  Ms. Phipps' formula starting with 2004 and

5 ending with 2014 does not correlate to regulatory

6 reporting requirements.

7        Q.  Okay.  Then going back to your

8 surrebuttal testimony on page 28, lines 596 to 598,

9 you state there, note that the formula does not

10 separately identify net income or retained earnings

11 from purchase accounting separately from net income

12 or retained earnings not related to purchase

13 accounting.  Do you see that?

14        A.  Yes.

15        Q.  I would like to turn your attention to

16 Staff Exhibit 14, the testimony of Ms. Phipps',

17 Exhibit 14.0, Attachment B which is the same RMP

18 5.04R Attached that we were discussing earlier.

19        A.  I have that.

20        Q.  Okay.  Can you identify for me where

21 the items from the formula you present on page 28

22 of your surrebuttal are presented in RMP 5.04R

23 Attached?

24        A.  The RMP 5.040, 5.04R Attached, it shows
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1 the -- it doesn't show the, it doesn't show the

2 beginning balance retained earnings, it shows the

3 end in common transfers, and that correlates with

4 the RE transfer line from page 28, and it doesn't

5 show dividends for preferred, it just focuses on

6 dividends from retained earnings, common stock

7 dividends, and that's shown in the top section.

8        So then income common that correlates to RE

9 transfer is shown in the top section, and the

10 dividends that correlate with DIVcomm on page 28

11 are shown in the top section.

12        Q.  Turning you back to your surrebuttal

13 testimony, page 27, lines 576 to 577, you state

14 there FERC Form 1, page 118 and Form 21 ILCC both

15 present the calculation of unappropriated retained

16 earnings included in the balance sheet of the

17 company.  Is that -- do you see that there?

18        A.  Yes.

19        Q.  Now, page 118 of the company's FERC

20 Form 1 is the company statement of retained

21 earnings, correct?

22        A.  Correct.

23        Q.  And page 6 of the company's Form 21

24 ILCC annual report presents the same information?
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1        A.  Subject to check, I would agree.

2           MR. SAGONE:  Your Honor, may I approach?

3           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

4           MR. SAGONE:  Your Honor, I have just

5 handed the witness what was been marked for

6 identification as ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 4.

7        Q.  Mr. Stafford, can you take a moment to

8 look at what I have just handed you, and can you

9 tell me if you recognize that?

10        A.  Yes.

11           MR. SAGONE:  For the record I would note

12 that what is in ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 4 is page 6

13 of the Form 21 ILCC annual report for 2012, 2011,

14 2010 and 2008.

15        Q.  So the question, Mr. Stafford, is it

16 correct that page 6 of AIC or the company's Form 21

17 ILCC annual report presents the same information as

18 found on page 118 of the company's FERC Form 1?

19          MR. STURTEVANT:  I'm going to object.

20 I'm not sure foundation for this document has been

21 established.  I know Mr. Stafford testified that he

22 recognized it, but I'm not sure that he has

23 testified that he recognized it as what staff is

24 now purporting it to be.
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1        Q.  Mr. Stafford, you just noted that you

2 recognized what the document is.

3        Can you tell me what the document is?

4        A.  The document is a Form 21 ILCC page 6

5 for Ameren Illinois 2010, '11 and '12, and then the

6 last page is Illinois Power only, page 6, Form 21

7 of 2008.

8        Q.  And are you familiar with these?

9        A.  I am familiar with the documents, yes.

10        Q.  So let me ask again.  It is correct,

11 isn't it, page 6 of the company's Form 21 ILCC

12 annual report presents the same information as

13 found on page 118 of the company's FERC Form 1?

14        A.  Well, I haven't seen the Form 1 page to

15 see if it is exactly the same information.  I think

16 structurally it is the same information but I don't

17 know the amounts are identical without reviewing

18 the Form 1 pages.

19        Q.  Well, you answered in response to one

20 of my earlier questions that page 118 of company's

21 FERC Form 1 contains the company's statement of

22 retained earnings; is that correct?

23        A.  That's correct.

24        Q.  And referring to -- if you could, look
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1 at just the first page of the Cross Exhibit 4 for

2 December 2012.

3        Just below or just above the instructions

4 can you read to me what it says there, the line

5 just above instructions?

6        A.  Do you want me to read instructions?

7        Q.  No, just above the instructions.

8        A.  Statement of Retained Earnings.

9           MR. SAGONE:  Your Honor, may I approach?

10           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

11           MR. SAGONE:  Your Honor, for the record

12 I have handed the witness what has been marked for

13 identification as ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 5.

14        Q.  Mr. Stafford, can you take a couple

15 moments to review that?

16        Do you recognize what I have handed you?

17        A.  Yes, I recognize it.

18        Q.  And can you tell me what that is?

19        A.  This is a FERC Form 1, page 118 and 119

20 for various years.

21        Q.  And can you tell me what years those

22 are listed there?

23        A.  2012, 2011, 2010, 2008 for Illinois

24 Power company only.
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1        Q.  And you are familiar with this

2 document?

3        A.  Yes.

4        Q.  Now, if I could ask you to look at the

5 very bottom.  I'm sorry.  Strike that.

6        So if I could ask you, on FERC Form 1 for

7 2012, if you could find the column titled Current

8 Quarter/Year Year-To-Date Balance and review the

9 figures contained there, and then if I could refer

10 you back to ICC Staff Cross Exhibit 4, Form IL 22

11 and look at the figures listed there under the

12 amount column.  Let me know when you are --

13        A.  I see that.

14        Q.  Okay.  And those numbers are the same,

15 aren't they?

16        A.  Yes.

17        Q.  So, in fact, the numbers for a given

18 year as presented in the statement of retained

19 earnings on both the FERC Form 1 and the Form 21

20 ILCC annual report are identical; is that correct?

21        A.  That's correct.

22           MR. SAGONE: Nothing further at this

23 time.  Thank you.

24           JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Thank you.  Is
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1 there any redirect?

2           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, if we might

3 have no more than ten minutes with our witness.

4           JUDGE JONES:  Just try to do it in five

5 if you can.  Ten can easily get to twenty til,

6 quarter to five, then if you have questions I see

7 some problems.

8          MR. STURTEVANT:  All right.  We will talk

9 fast.

10                 (A break was taken.)

11           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on the

12 record.  Is there any redirect?

13          MR. STURTEVANT:  There is, your Honor.

14                 REDIRECT EXAMINATION

15 QUESTIONS BY MR. STURTEVANT:

16        Q.  Mr. Stafford, do you recall the line of

17 questioning from counsel for the Attorney General

18 regarding the so-called Metro East step-up basis

19 adjustment?

20        A.  Yes.

21        Q.  And was the Metro East adjustment

22 proposed in this case by staff and AG previously

23 rejected by the Commission?

24        A.  Yes.
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1        Q.  And do you recall a line of questioning

2 from staff counsel regarding purchase accounting

3 adjustment proposed by staff?

4        A.  Yes.

5        Q.  And was the purchase accounting

6 adjustment that's proposed by staff in this case

7 previously rejected by the Commission?

8        A.  Yes, it was.

9           MR. STURTEVANT:  I have no further

10 questions, your Honor.

11           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Thank you.

12 Any recross?

13           MR. DOSHI:  I have one question, your

14 Honor.

15           JUDGE JONES:  Yes, sir.

16                 RECROSS-EXAMINATION

17 QUESTIONS BY MR. DOSHI:

18        Q.  Mr. Stafford, earlier in our

19 questioning you estimated based on some quick

20 mental math that the ADIT balance on the books of

21 Ameren Illinois would reach equilibrium with what

22 the declining ADIT balance on the books of the

23 Union Electric counterfactually would have been if

24 it had stayed with Union Electric.
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1        Would you agree that -- if you turn to page

2 20 of your surrebuttal testimony, would you agree

3 that, while I grant that the algorithm or

4 methodology on page 20 is probably highly

5 simplified, what you have written on page 20 is the

6 basic framework for calculating how much ADIT would

7 accumulate on the books of Ameren Illinois over the

8 years since 2005?

9           MR. STURTEVANT:  Your Honor, I'm going

10 to object to the question.  Outside the scope of

11 redirect.

12          JUDGE JONES:  Response?

13          MR. DOSHI:  Withdrawn.

14          JUDGE JONES:  Okay.  Okay.  Is there any

15 other recross?

16           MR. SAGONE:  Nothing from staff, your

17 Honor.

18          JUDGE JONES:  Thank you, Mr. Stafford.

19 Off the record.

20                  (Discussion off the record.)

21           JUDGE JONES:  All right.  Back on the

22 record.  Let the record show an off-the-record

23 discussion for the purposes indicated.  I think the

24 plan is to stick with the current witness
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1 scheduling for the next two days, and then start at

2 ten in the morning and we have a couple of staff

3 cross exhibits, 4 and 5, those have not been

4 offered, is that --

5           MR. SAGONE:  That's correct.  We are not

6 going to offer those into evidence.

7          JUDGE JONES:  So make sure the record

8 notes that, and now it does.  Those will not be

9 offered into the evidentiary record.

10        Does anybody have anything else on or off

11 the record before we finish for today?

12        All right.  If not, at this time let the

13 record show today's portion of the hearings

14 concluded.  We will resume tomorrow morning at the

15 hour of ten a.m.

16           (Hearing in recess at 4:35 p.m.)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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